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Characteristics of The Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and
other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.
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1997

e Establishment of the Group
o REMA L

1998

¢ Development of technologies and applications
o Hiig K FE A F B

1999

e Launched hardware products for smartcard system under
the trademark of "HOMAC"

e Awarded with important smartcard and RFID projects in Hong Kong

* J[HOMAC | WSk H B FAGEANERER
° REBEISZRE NS FRAERERI TR

2000

e Winning of 2000 HK Industry Award
s IS=ZTTHFRBIHER

2001

e Listing on The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited

e Establishment of wholly owned PRC subsidiary: ITE (China) Limited in

Shanghai
e Winning of 2001 HK Industry Award

e Acquisition of leading IT System Integrator, Quesco Holdings Limited and

Quesco Systems Limited on 7 December 2001
s NEBHAREMARARRIZERTIS LD
s RHEl LRI ZEMBAR @ LBMKERARKERAT
s E=ZT—FHRBIHER

* REZEZ-F+Z AL HWBATERABHUNENRNRAGERD — BHEE

ERERADRENZSEBERAR

Corporate Review

ANEIIEN

Accreditation of ISO 9001:2000 Quality Assurance System
Launched new 1SO15693 product series and solutions
Patent filing of ISO15693 based Smart Key Management
System (SKMS) accepted by the State Intellectual Property
Office of the People’s Republic of China

Awarded with the first ISO15693 Smartlabel project in Hong
Kong

Strategic Business Agreement signed with Shanghai Public
Traffic Card Company Limited (SPTCC) for the provision of
value-added solutions and services to its user community
Entered into distributor agreement with Texas Instruments
for marketing, sales and support of its product ranges
Became the sub-issuer of MULTOS

Receiving of Caring Company Award

E{51SO 9001:20007 B EIR A FAH
HH—FFISO15693F MR AR R

LAISO15693 R A SRR A EE R S BRI RFRETEBER
HAERRENFZE
RISABEIEISO15693 8B ALK L2
HEEBARTBRROBRAREIRBMLTGE  REAFE
RSB ERRS ZRRHB

BEEREMNERARNFT IR - AEHERFEE  HER
xE

BAMULTOSHIZ1TE

B BRREIE R

Geographical expansion into Macao

Appointed as an international channel partner of Transcore,
LP

Patent filing of Automated Passenger Management System
(APMS) accepted by the State Intellectual Property Office of
the People’s Republic of China

Accredited as one of the fastest growing technology
companies by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in the “2003 Asia
Pacific Technology Fast 500"

EBmREIRM

% Transcore, LP ZER BB
HikEBMBREEEARENRFETRHERANBERRER
RRE

EBEH BAERSSMMITEERE-_REIZTALESRES
FR50038 | REEHATIER
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Corporate Review
NCIIEI

e Establishment of ITE Sistema (Macau) Limitada

e Contract award of the Macao SAR Customs Services “Automated Vehicle
Clearance System” & Public Security Forces Affairs Bureau “Automated
Passenger Clearance System”

e Successfully completed the ISO 9001:2000 Quality Assurance System Audit

e Awarded the Caring Company by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

o B EERL (RFY) BROF

* BINVEEUEMERTHESHE [EHABEHRAR IR
REBEEHR [REEBBEAZRS | T2

* MIFTALISO 9001: 2000 FFEERE B EE R E

o EEMTENEBRARBZE]ZS

e Winning of “Hong Kong Awards For Industries 2005 — Machinery and

Equipment Design Award” for Automated Passenger Management System
("APMS™)

e Awarded of Computer Registration Management System of the Construction
Worker Registration Authority, HKSAR

e QSL passed the ISO 9001:2000 Quality Assurance System

e Successfully completed the Hong Kong Marathon 2005

¢ Joined “Give Blood Give Live” — Blood Donation Day for the Hong Kong Red
Cross Blood Transfusion Service

o [MREEHBHAK | XE_STRRBIRESE — HESRBERFE

s BEGZEXET AZMERRNEMLIMEBRRRNENIRE

o FERIEERIBIBISO 9001: 2000 M ERERFNEFX

° BN R E B B HIHA2005

e BUOBHEBA+FERMTE

e Official launch of Computer Registration Management System of the
Construction Worker Registration Authority, HKSAR
e Overseas expansion in Middle East and Southeast Asia

e Establishment of Intellectual Property Rights Centre

e ITE Smartcard Solutions Ltd. implemented the first Automated Passenger
Clearance System (“APCS”) of the Public Security Forces Services Bureau,
Macao SAR at the Barrier Gate Checkpoint

e |TE and Quesco staff completed the Hong Kong Marathon 2006

e ITE and Quesco received the “Caring Company Logo” by The Hong Kong
Council of Social Welfare for four years and two years respectively

o Successfully completed Exhibition in “IT Week 2005” Macao

e The ITE Smart Key Management System Patent was successfully granted by
State Intellectual Property Office of the People’s Republic of China

ITE (Holdings) Limited

e EEET AGMEERNSKETMERRBERNRARE

s ERESERBARBE  HRMEETRRRMEEREE

o B AR ERER O

o HFEBIITHRERZIEEHREN [ BEBEZRE | MR R
SRR ANBIRREISIEEE

o BERENEIRINTHREEFRIA2006

o BINBEAFRERNEEFEE [BRRRIEER

o BEMTAER [EAREE2005] RE

e BERIWERPEARKANBEERAAEER BB EE
MEE RS | EF

¢ Winning of “Hong Kong Awards For Industries 2007 — Machinery
and Equipment Design Award Certificate of Merit” for “Wireless
Smartcard Transaction Controller featuring Bluetooth technology”

e Official Launch of Extension of Macao Automated Passenger
Management System (“APMS")

e Granting of Research Funding by Innovation and Technology
Commission of HK to RF Tech Ltd.

e Forming Strategic Partnership with Macao Pass Card

e New Trademark and Logo for RF Tech Ltd.’s Software Product
Series (“intelli”)

e Granting of the First U.S. Design Patent by the United States
Patent and Trademark Office to RF Tech Ltd.

o [EAEFEGRMNERFRGEHR I RKE_STtFEET
P — W RRERETEE

o EXEHIRFRE BENBEEERSZ (APMS]) NIBRREK

* RF Tech Ltd. B{ZhERE BRIFRHR BNAIN R MEES

o B2 [RPYE | AR SR

o [lintelli | ZEfBELARF Tech Lid 84 & R RS EERIEH

 RF Tech Ltd. {INEEEE SR B R F 1 B RTER




e Become the regional channel partner of the world leading smartcard and digital
security company, Gemalto SA

e Completion of the first Innovation and Technology Commission funded research and
development project, Embedded Computer Vision Escalator Passenger Monitor, together
with a PCT patent filed

e Delivery of the first multi-applications smartcard system built on MacaoPass Card for
a luxury real estate complex in Macao

e Completion of a sophisticated equipment asset management system for the Macao
Prison using RFID technologies

e Completion of the first smartcard driven passage management and access control
system for the Lingnan University

e Collaboration with the Hong Kong Polytechnic University through the first technology
transfer and licensing arrangement for a digital security product

o EIZ B REF R BB RREK A EE U MGemalto SAEESER K=

cHEEBAFMNEBESEYNER —[HMAXNTERREFBARERERE
B |- BRI B BER SR R BRI SR

e BB R XN EEENRIIBE 2 ARSI SREEETER

° I ARPIE B RIRHENIHER RN EEEZAR

o REMASRMEETREFRERMIERS

e MEBETAEBEHESE  BEBRNERRRBISRRER

e Delivery of the first campus smartcard system based on Macau Pass Card for Macao
Pui Ching Middle School

e Partnering with Canon Hong Kong for the development of Macau Pass Card driven
e-payment solution for their photocopiers

o System migration from contact to contactless smartcards for The Chinese University
of Hong Kong

o Award of hospital-wide access control system contracts for Queen Elizabeth Hospital,
Grantham Hospital, The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital and Tung Wah Hospital

e Award of contract for the provision of computer personnel services for the Hong
Kong Hospital Authority

e Completion of Exhibition in “CARTES in Asia”

° I ARPUEEPERBRINENEFIBFIRBESEFER

o ECanonfEREE B AR A BIMRMBY - MUMEERN NRFIE ] FEARETH
SR RITEREFNENFTEZSR

° REBHNAEBE RS HEAEEER TSN

EMZBERNEEFRESSH  BEFINAER - EEMER - AORRED
BRARERRRRERR

e S ABBEREERRHEMSVEERBENELN

o B INTERL [N ERE R B BDRBIR T TR |

Corporate Review
NGIIE=S

e Collaboration with Automotive Parts and Accessory Systems R&D

Centre (“APAS") for development of Electric Vehicle Fast Charging

Station with Professional E-payment System, and completion of

exhibitions in various regions.

Expand collaboration with Canon Hong Kong for development

of Octopus Card driven e-payment solutions for their document

management systems.

Delivery of the first multi-applications payment solution based on

MacauPass Card for the Macao Institute for Tourism Studies.

Development of the first active-RFID based track and trace

application for Macao law enforcement government department.

Launch of the World's 1st Dual Frequency RFID guard tour reader

with Bluetooth connectivity

o BB ETIMHMARBEPOVEE  BHREAEXETRERS
ZEHEREZEL  TESEALENRESRL

° ECanonfEREEBBMARBREE - RUBBHER[/UEEB]F
FERRETHZ IR RITIEEFHERL

o BTN RRPIRIEE IR R R A EEEN NRAE ] BEEFNZY
BEBFHERS

o FRPIHEBUNERPIRA 3 B IR E RN IRETER BT E L 3B
HERAT ©

o BB R EREEEIRGTIRA R FIRICERS - WA B FEUSENIhRE

e Extended coverage of intellAC intelligent security systems to the
eighth public hospital in Hong Kong

e Complete delivery of an advanced hybrid RFID enabled library
automated system for an academic institute in Macao

e Complete delivery of an automatic fare collection system for a
public swimming pool of the Hong Kong SAR Government

e Award of contract for the design and supply of book sorter system
for a public library of the Hong Kong SAR Government

e Launch of 20Kw DC fast charging station for electric vehicle
charging application

e Trail testing of electric vehicle fast charging stations at Government
Department and automobile service centre

e Invention patent granted for ‘Embedded Computer Vision
Escalator Passenger Monitor’ by the State Intellectual Property
Office

o RMUEERZAGHEEBAVEROERE N\

° BRI RERRTTR KR AT —EE NG IEHE B K B 7B
TR B BB EEE RS

° TERRZXAERBBNE T 2HARFOLN BB RERLS

RN -BATRINBET ARESERERZEELABH I ER
HHER

[0 FREHHELZRRRETEBI | RERIRATISEA

o EREBHUN —BPPI R BENE ARG R E T IRE R BIIR A AT

o BRI [ MARGTERRERBAREREREE | BRTEAR
HABEERABER SR TER
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Chairman’s Statement

FEHRE

ITE Smartcard Solutions Limited (“ITES”) continues to provide
products and services to our new and existing clients

ERRGHERNA] ([EHERT]) B R EE P retitm=E

aa K AR 7%

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
| hereby present the annual results for ITE (Holdings) Limited (the
“ITE” or the “Group”) for the

“Directors”),

“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
year ended 31 March 2012 (the “Year”).
Mission

The mission of the Group is to become the leading smartcard, radio
frequency identification (“RFID"), biometrics product and solution provider
and system integrator in the world. ITE has been pioneering and has
achieved outstanding performance in the areas of smartcard system
solutions and integration services in the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“Hong Kong” or “"HKSAR"”), the Macao Special Administrative
Region (“Macao”) and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). With
profound expertise, strong research and development (“R&D") capability,
proven track record and excellent reputation, the Group has established a
leading profile in our own industry and has adopted a proactive approach
to introduce innovative and customised smartcard, RFID and biometrics
applications to our clients. Leveraging on our extensive industry experience
and intellectual assets, ITE will continue to develop innovative products
and multi-applications solutions for clients coming from different industries

and to expand our businesses to more overseas countries.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

/X

HUBRBR

AAZERXEFS(EST Gl KE =] 18 2TE
(Holdings) Limited ([AAF]) REWE AT (57 [ITE]
K[ AEE])HE-_Z-——F=A=+—HILFENEF
2E(TFR]) -

B

AEENRE  REXNSERAFEMAIOELFR - 5758
A EMBEMERER  DRERBHER - ITE-ER
EREFHTHE ([FE]) RFIETERRERE (DRF]) RkH
FEARKME ([hE]) EEERERTRERERTIENE
B RBEUHAE - AEBAGEENH  BRANHARR
I ([HE]D ENMRFNESE  BEEBEEERREIES
WAL - WiEMRFAE P HEN BRI ME S FTEN SR - 5148
BEIREMBHERMERSTR - BENERENZELR N
HMBEE  |TERBERKATRTENTESPHERMES
ZWREEMAN R REHARRY - YRREFZHIER -



Appreciation
| would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest thanks to my

directors, management and staff for their dedication and hard work, and
shareholders, financiers and business partners for their continual support.

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

&
ANEHLRE  NEFERE - EIRERE MM

BB - ARRR BEAT SR REBNF—
AR SHF - BUARIIEE »
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Management Discussion and Analysis

/%:EE} E‘ Eﬁ&ﬁ*ﬁ

Management of the Group has continued to utilise our professional and
committed workforce and financial resources to achieve maximum return
to our shareholders.

Business Review
Marketing and Operation

On 24 May, 2012, the Financial Secretary, Mr. John C W Tsang, officiated
at a launch ceremony for the government electric vehicle (“EV") charging
stations at Star Ferry Government Car Park. Our solution and professional
services arm, ITE Smartcard Solutions Limited (“ITES”), was selected to
supply the Octopus Card payment solution for one of the local utility
companies, The Hongkong Electric Company Limited, in support of the
fast charging requirements of EVs. For this project, ITES provided the
Octopus Card payment clearing system together with the front-end
application kiosks, system integration services was also provided for the

high capacity charging stations in use.

As an environmentally friendly means of transport for the future, EVs have
become more popular in recent years. To promote the use, it is essential
to put in place a comprehensive public EV charging network which must
include advanced fast charging stations and smartcard applications.
Despite that the availability and adoption of EVs are slow, ITES is very
optimistic towards the business opportunity to be generated by this
sustainable technology and application.

During the Year, ITES won and delivered a number of new smartcard
projects for the provisions of smartmeter, e-payment, attendance,
access control and passage management systems. Enhancement and
maintenance service orders and purchases of smartcard products have
remained fairly stable.

The Castle Peak Hospital of the New Territories West Cluster has been
installed with a new access control and video door phone system provided
by ITES. The Hospital has become the eighth public hospitals in Hong
Kong using our intelligent security systems.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

FEEMERARBEZEXND  SEETHOAD TR
R RERRAREZRSHE®

ESE1
HERDBHEE

MHARRGEENR-_Z——_FARAHTHBEEULNRE
NRBEFEESNESHERE 15 R AER - AEE LR
HEARERBOZENEFAR  ERERERAR (8
ZRE]) Z%ZIS;%—Fﬁ@%%%AET [HEEEARAT]
RENEBRNENBERDEAEREZTEHAE
M- mBEES  [BERS] R REHE R ZBNEH
H RGN A R TAEuE MAERE B H R ARTS -

BEEHGEEBMMRRES  EHEERABDBRER
b RTE-THE BESREGEETHEINAS
EE2ERERERERREZEHRE  HTERTRIAEEE
TRNEER BERNEDENEREMENEKF - T8
BRG] HHRERLBEARFERER R EBRIEELE

FA-EERG] EREXNZEFNEERRTIE - A
BERmERtig EFNE ZHEE  FIEEHLE

BEERARE - ZHALGWEDS  BERERBERERK
BEEREEGIIBEN RS -
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REA %%%%ﬁfﬁ BN BT ILBR TR EET
PIZIE I RARGEAEFR A - SILERERAAEEN\Bh [E
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ITES is also pleased to announce the successful completion of the Hybrid
RFID Enabled Library Automated System for our Macau client, Institute
for Tourism Studies. Incorporating both the 1SO-15693 and [SO-28560
standards, the system is integrated with EM-EAS technology to form a
hybrid solution. The scope of supply and services include RFID labels for
books and multimedia discs, book enrolment and conversion services,
custom-manufactured staff and self-service check-out stations, together
with our latest RFID handheld reader. ITES also completed the supply and
delivery of an Automatic Fare Collection System for Tin Shui Wai Ping
Shan Swimming Pool of the Leisure and Cultural Services Department. The
system provided includes Octopus Card and coin accepted turnstile units,
automatic money changers and our intelli®AFC management software.

For the third consecutive year, ITES provided the production and
personalization services of the student smartcards for various institutes
of the Hong Kong Vocational Training Council. More than 10,000 pieces
of student smartcards were produced and delivered. Also for the third
consecutive year, ITE Macau Limited was selected by the 58th Macao
Grand Prix for the supply of event smartcards, access control and parking
management system together with on-site professional services for the
event held in last November.

Our product arm, RF Tech Limited (“RFT"”), has developed many new
products including an advanced handheld RFID reader which works with
Android device through Bluetooth connectivity, the product was unique
and powerful for library book management application.

An important patent filing was made by ITE (China) Limited (“ITEC") to
the International Bureau of Patent Cooperation Treaty on 23 December
2010. The International Bureau has published the International Application
under Release No. W02011/078127 on 30 June 2011.
the concept and application of book enrolment through the invention,

ITES pioneers
research and development of our innovation, “Embedded Computer
Vision and RFID Enabled Book Enrolment Mechanism”. This innovation
makes possible the images capture, recognition, analysis and encoding of
important characteristics of a book be instantly done through a single-step
process. Through this sophisticated book enrolment process, more
killer applications in the area of RFID enabled library automation can be

developed.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE N DT

[EREFR] MASHRINTR RN DRPIRESR] —
BERF AN EEEEEEX X5
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE atam o

We are also pleased to announce that a new invention patent,
‘Embedded Computer Vision Escalator Passenger Monitor’, was granted
by the State Intellectual Property Office on 26 March, 2012, Grant No.
200810039034.6. This new Intellectual Property has strengthened ITE's IP
portfolio which consists of copyrights, registered design, trademarks and

invention.

The cooperation between ITES and the Automotive Parts and Accessory
Systems R&D Centre (“APAS”) for the development of electric vehicle
fast charging station is giving promising result with the official launch of
product in June 2011. Another research and development collaboration
project with APAS, “Dual Power 100Kw Fast Charging Station for Electric
Vehicle”, was also approved by the Innovation Technology Commission
during the Year. This R&D project is targeted for completion in mid 2014.

Future Prospect

Since our establishment, we have been focusing on our core business and
technologies, we continue to devote our efforts and resources to the long
term growth of the Company building on our Innovation, Technology
and Excellency; three words which best explain the name of ITE. All
members of the Company perform professionally under our vision, mission
and set of core values. New intellectual assets are built and accumulated
and the range of professional services are expanded to meet the fast
growing needs of the changing market. We have firmly maintained our
position as the pure rider to provide multi-applications solutions to our
clients. Despite that the Group experienced a loss in the financial result for
the fiscal year 2012, the Directors strongly believe that the Company will
return to profitability in the fiscal year 2013.

Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 March 2012 the Group recorded a total turnover of
approximately HK$26 million, representing an increase of 11% over last
year. Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2012 was approximately HK$1.8 million as compared to
approximately HK$3.4 million for last year.

Segmental Information
During the year, the Group recorded an increment in turnover for about

11% when compared with last year. Besides, the Group’s gross profit
margin has improved from 28% in last year to 29% in current year.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

HELRE - RPRASTMS —EF A [RAXGTERE
BEBARERLERELE  R_T——-F=-AH A%
HEARKNMBEERABEERE TERN  EFRKS
200810039034.6 o F IS noe &0 & E R AT 38 - S 3808
REBERRE - IMNRRET - AEREREFERE o

(ERRG) BIEEASEHAMERL] AENEHE
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GRS

RE

AEERLES LM EBEREABDRBRENE - HE
BEIROEBRBOEN 2 HEREREERNER
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BEEMAKREBRTEERE BREZOVEE - £ET
B Nss 2 B T ABERE - R PRERS O E &M AR
%o RABRTHSIMA - SEBZHEERTRERNZPH
E—FXEME BERERNBE-FREESEN &
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The service revenue generated from core business, i.e. the provision of
the smartcard systems, RFID and information technology (“IT") services
and related sales, was HK$12,873,845 (2011: HK$10,537,140) which was
increased by 22%. However, the income from maintenance services was
slightly decreased by 2% to HK$8,704,725 (2011: HK$8,851,774).

For consultancy service segment, the turnover increased by 7% to
HK$4,324,891 (2011: HK$4,028,766). The profit margin had improved
from 9% to 11%.

With our continual tighter cost control during the severe financial
situation, the Group’s administrative expenses had decreased by 8%.

With our continual working capital improvement, the finance costs
decreased by 4% to HK$83,019 (2011: HK$86,547) for the year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with its internally generated
cash flows and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2012, the Group did
not have any outstanding borrowings. As at 31 March 2012, the current
ratio of the Group was 3.09 (2011: 2.77) while the liquidity ratio was 2.74
(2011: 2.53).

The Group continues to adopt a conservative approach towards its
treasury policy. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit evaluations of the financial condition of its
customers. Besides, the Group’s liquidity and financing arrangements are
also reviewed regularly.

Taking into consideration the banking facilities granted, stringent cost
control and the existing financial resources available to the Group, it is
believed that the Group should have adequate financial resources to meet
its operation, development requirements and investments in the future.

Significant Investments
The Group had no significant investments during the year under review.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals of Subsidiaries
and Affiliated Companies

During the year under review, the Group had no acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE N DT

REBEZOEBRA - B REBERES - 5755
RGEREMBBERBEREBBEE  LEAFEN2%E
12,873,845% 7L (ZZF——4 : 10,537,140 7T) ° BIE(R
BEUWAT EAVE T %2%£8,704,725% 70 (Z T ——F ¢
8,851,774% L) °

FER RSB HE
T(ZB——%F:
FHE11%KFE o

BEBREAFIEINTI%EA 324,891/
4,028,766 L) + M A EREE INEI%

ERERFEBE R EBENRAEST
AT 8% -

CAREEITHRE

EHERDESHNEBRLT  UREEBRARNAFEER 4%
%£83,019% 7 (ZZT——%F : 86,54787L) °

EEREME  UBERREBBE

LAW:.BF‘EEI’JEE EnERIBITEERMNHLEE
—ZF=A=+—8 AEEWRBEMAK
AEBMRZZ—ZF=A=+—"BHEH
T——F:277) MABHRSLXAA
(ZZ=——%:253) -

ERE G ?K

AEHEBERMBEEBBR - AEETHREZPOH
BOWRETEERF S - BOREAARENERERR - 1t
S REETEERBRARBDES REELT

REBIRTRE - B A S R A S ERA 7 8 08t
BE R AR EARLS B R8T A RSB A 12 1
28 - BERREFRE -

BEARE

REERFNLEEEAEARE -
EANBBREENBLARAREE QA

AR = B R E R IR A B R A R EE D

£&® o
=

A H) 4 B 3

ANNUAL REPORT 2011-2012 F3&

M



12

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE atam o

Employment Information

The Group recognises that its staff is one of the Group’s most important
assets. Aiming at providing competitive salary packages, the Group
adjusts employees’ salary level in close association with the performance,
qualifications and experience of individual staff as well as labour market
conditions. In addition to the regular remuneration, discretionary bonus
and share options may be awarded to eligible employees with reference
to individual performance and the Group’s business performance.

The Group enjoys good relations with staff and has not experienced any
disruption of operations due to major labour disputes. In addition to
the remuneration as mentioned above, the Group also provides fringe
benefits which comply with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC
and Hong Kong including contributions to social security scheme of the
PRC and contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme of Hong
Kong. Besides, the Group also provides on-going training programmes for
its employees to keep them abreast of the latest market trends and new
technologies.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had 68 (2011: 80) full-time employees,
of which 63 are based in Hong Kong and the rest are in the PRC and
Macao. Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration, was approximately
HK$15 million (2011: HK$15 million) for the year ended 31 March 2012.
During the year, the Company has not granted any share option to any of
its Directors and employees.

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2012, time deposits of HK$2,206,643 (2011:
HK$5,816,140) was pledged to banks to secure certain banking facilities
of the Group.

Future Plans for Material Investments

The Group did not have any plans for material investment and acquisition
of material capital assets as at 31 March 2012.

Gearing Ratio
At 31 March 2012, the gearing ratio of the Group, which is calculated as

the ratio of total secured bank loans due after one year to shareholders’
funds, was nil (2011: nil).
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group’s assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are mainly
denominated in HK$, United States dollars (“US$"), Macau Patacas
("MOP") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The exchange rates between HK$, US$,
MOP and RMB have been very steady for the past few years. During the
year, the Group generally used the receipts from customers and bank
loans to pay its suppliers and meet its capital requirements. They are
denominated in the local currency of the place in which the subsidiaries
operate. The Group does not currently engage in hedging to manage
possible exchange rate risk as the Group considers the cost associated
with such hedging arrangements would exceed the benefits. However,
management will continue to monitor the possible exposure to exchange
rate risk and will take such measures as it deems prudent.

Contingent Liability

At 31 March 2012, the Company has issued corporate guarantee to a
bank in respect of banking facilities granted to a wholly owned subsidiary.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company is firmly committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
emphasising transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness. The Board ensures that effective self-requlatory practices exist to
protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
"Code") contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprises Market of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended
31 March 2012, save for the deviations discussed below.

Under the code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent is both the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company who is responsible for managing the Board and
the Group’s business. Mr. Lau has been both chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company since its incorporation. The Board considers that,
with the present board structure and scope of business of the Group,
there is no imminent need to separate the roles into two individuals as
Mr. Lau is perfectly capable of distinguishing the priority of these roles
in which he has been acting. However, the Board will continue to review
the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether the separation of the positions of chairman and chief executive
officer is necessary.

Under the code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. However,
the non-executive Directors do not have a specific term of appointment,
but are subject to rotation in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2012. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings throughout the year ended
31 March 2012.

Board of Directors and Board Meeting

The Board which currently comprises four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and business development of the Group. Details of
the Directors are set in the section “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report. All Directors give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. To the best knowledge of the Board,
there is no financial, business and family relationship among the members
of the Board except that Mr. Liu Hoi Wah is the younger brother of Mr.

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent.

All independent non-executive Directors, do not have any business or
significant financial interests with the Group and each of them have
confirmed their independence to the Group pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Based on the above-mentioned, the Board considers
that all independent non-executive Directors were independent.

With the various experience of both the executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors and the nature of the Group's
business, the Board considers that the Directors have a balance of skills
and experience for the business of the Group.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Such regular meetings will normally involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors entitled to be present.

Corporate Governance Report
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During the year ended 31 March 2012, four board meetings were held
and the following is an attendance record of the meetings by each
Director.

Attendance
Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent 4/4
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung 4/4

Mr. George Roger Manho 3/4

Mr. Liu Hoi Wah 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen 4/4

Mr. Tang Siu, Henry 0/4
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony 4/4

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and formulate
the overall strategies of the Group, monitor financial performances and
discuss the annual, interim and quarterly results, as well as discuss and
decide on other significant matters. Execution of daily operational matters
is delegated to management.

Notice of regular board meeting is usually given at least 14 days in
advances to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. An agenda for
each board meeting will be prepared and normally distributed to the
Directors together with necessary board papers and related materials at
least four days before the board meeting. Directors are free to add any
items on the agenda as they may think fit. The Company Secretary is
responsible for recording the matters considered and decisions reached by
the Board including any concerns or dissenting views raised by Directors.
Minutes of board meetings and the board committees meetings will be
sent to all Directors for their comments and records as soon as after the

board meeting.
Minutes of board meetings and board committees meetings are kept by

the Company Secretary and such minutes are open for inspection within

reasonable advance notice.
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All Directors have access to relevant and timely information, and they can
ask for further information or retain independent professional advisors if
necessary. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and service of
the Company Secretary, who is responsible for providing Directors with
board papers and related materials and ensuring that board procedures
are followed.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder
or Director arise, the matter is discussed in an actual meeting, as opposed
to being dealt with by written resolution. Independent non-executive
Directors with no conflict of interest are present at meetings dealing with
conflict issues. Board committees, including the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees, all follow the applicable practices and procedures
used in board meetings for committee meetings.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Company did not segregate the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer. The role of the chief executive officer was performed by
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, who was the then existing chairman of the
Company during the year under review. Apart from the reason of such
deviation mentioned above, the Board also believes that vesting the roles
of both chairman and chief executive officer in the same person provides
the Company with strong and consistent leadership, and allows for
effective and efficient planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies.

The Board will periodically review the merits and demerits of such
management structure and will adopt such appropriate measures as may
be necessary in the future taking into consideration of the nature and
extent of the Group’s operation.

Audit Committee

As required by Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee which comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen, Mr. Tang Siu, Henry and
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony. Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen was appointed as
chairman of the audit committee.
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The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and accounts, half-yearly report and quarterly reports and to
provide advices and comments thereon to the Board. The audit committee
meets at least four times a year with management to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and to discuss
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters. The principal
terms of reference includes, inter alia, its relationship with the Company’s
external auditor, review of the Company's financial information and
oversight of the financial reporting system and internal control procedures
of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, four audit committee meetings
were held and the following is an attendance record of the meetings by
each Director.

Attendance
Name of Directors
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen 4/4
Mr. Tang Siu, Henry 0/4
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony 4/4

The Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 have
been reviewed by the audit committee, who is of the opinion that such
statements comply with the applicable accounting standards, the GEM
Listing Rules and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures had
been made.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on 1 August 2005
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The roles
and functions of the remuneration committee include the determination
of the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, such as any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment, and make recommendations
to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors. Members of
the remuneration committee include Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen, Mr. Tang Siu,
Henry, Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony and Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent,
with Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen as chairman. A majority of the votes in the
remuneration committee are exercisable by independent non-executive
Directors. No Director will be involved in any discussion in connection with

his own remuneration.
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The remuneration committee schedules meet at least once a year. During
the year, one remuneration committee meeting was held to review the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and the directors’ fees
of the independent non-executive Directors and the following is an
attendance record of the meeting by each Director.

Attendance
Name of Directors
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen 11
Mr. Tang Siu, Henry 0/1
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony 11
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent il

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 8 December 2005
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. Members of
the nomination committee include Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen, Mr. Tang Siu,
Henry, Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony and Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent,
with Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen as chairman.

The nomination committee shall meet before the annual general meeting
of the Company, or at other times as required by the chairman of the

nomination committee.

The roles and functions of the nomination committee include the
appointment and removal of Directors, reviews the background,
experience, qualification, general market conditions and the Company’s
articles of association in selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship.

During the Year, one nomination committee meeting was held and the
following is an attendance record of the meeting by each Director.

Attendance
Name of Directors
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen 11
Mr. Tang Siu, Henry 01
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony 71
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent 1/1
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During the meeting, members considered and resolved that all the existing
Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the Company. Further,
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, Mr. George Roger Manho and Mr. Tang
Siu, Henry will retire from the Board in accordance with Article 108 of
the Company'’s articles of association at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ and Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Group.

The statements of external auditor of the Company, Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 34
to 35 of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls
of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. In order to maintain
a sound and effective internal control for safeguarding the Company’s
assets and shareholders’ interests, the Board has adopted internal control
policy and procedures (the “Internal Control”) within the Company. The
Internal Control is designed to provide reasonable assurance against
misappropriate use of the Company’s assets and to manage the Group’s

operational system in an efficient manner.

The Internal Control mainly covers areas of finance, operations and
compliance. The Company shall conduct an annual review of the Internal
Control to assess its effectiveness and shall make recommendations to the
Board if any significant areas of concern are identified.
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External Auditor

The audit committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor of the Group. In particular, the audit committee will
consider, in advance of them being contracted for such service, whether
such non-audit service could lead to any potential material conflict of
interest. Nothing has come to its attention to cause the audit committee
to believe that the non-audit services provided by the external auditor
affect their independence, objectivity and effectiveness in the audit
process in accordance with applicable standard.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the fee payable to the auditor in
respect of audit services amounted to HK$320,000 while the fee payable
to the auditor in respect of non-audit services relating to the taxation
amounted to HK$35,900.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and transparent
communication with all shareholders. The Directors host annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders and answer their enquiries.
The Company uses various communication channels, such as publication
of annual and quarterly reports, press announcements and circulars,
to update the shareholders on the Group’s business developments and
financial performance. Such information is also available on the Company’s
website: http://www.hkite.com.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, aged 48, is an Executive Director, Chief
Executive Officer and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible
for overall strategic planning and management of the Group. With over
25 years of experience in the executive management, he was engaged
in China trade before founding the Group. Mr. Lau graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with a first class honours Degree of Bachelor
of Science in Mechanical Engineering. He holds a number of invention
patents and has led many research and development projects under the
funding schemes of the Innovation Technology Commission of Hong Kong
Government. He is the industrial advisor to the Engineering Departments
of The City University of Hong Kong and and The Chinese University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. George Roger Manho, aged 49, is an Executive Director and one
of the founders of the Group. Mr. Manho has 24 years of experience
in the control and automation industries, electrical and mechanical
projects and engineering management. He is a Chartered Engineer and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers, The Institute of Marine
Engineers and The Hong Kong Institute of Marine Technology and the
Institution of Fire Engineers. He holds a Master degree in Engineering
Studies in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Sydney and a
Bachelor of Science (Engineering) degree with first class honours in Marine
Engineering from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne.

Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung, aged 49, is an Executive Director and one of
the founders of the Group. He is responsible for technical management
and research and development (R&D). With 28 years of experience in R&D
and production management, Mr. Cheng won the awards of the Hong
Kong Awards for Industry for seven times (two Machinery and Equipment
Design in 2005 and 2007, one Consumer Product Design in each of 1993,
2000 and 2001 and two Designs in 1997). He holds a Higher Diploma in
Electronics Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Liu Hoi Wah, aged 43, is an Executive Director of the Group. He
is responsible for financial management, accounting and corporate
development. He joined the Group in March 2000. Mr. Liu graduated from
The London School of Economics and Political Science of the University
of London with a Bachelor of Science degree, first class honours in
Management Sciences. He is an associate member of each of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (“ICAEW") and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Mr. Liu is the
younger brother of Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent.
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Biographical Details of Directors & Senior Management

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen, cgE, Bs, FHKIE, JP, aged 72, holds an honorary
doctoral degree in engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and an honorary doctoral in laws from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He was formerly a member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council
from 1978 to 1997 and a senior member of the Hong Kong Legislative
Council from 1988 to 1991.
Kong Executive Council from 1985 to 1992. He was appointed as the

Dr. Lee was also a member of the Hong

Company’s independent non-executive director in December 2000.

Mr. Tang Siu, Henry, qoFsm, cPv, aged 67, is currently a Registered Chinese
Medicine Practitioner (Full Subjects), a director of a private company, the
Principal Consultant of Hong Kong Fire Services Staff General Association,
the Life and First President of the Hong Kong Professional Institute of
Chinese Medicine Medicated Meal & Food, a Consultant & life member
of Hong Kong Registered Chinese Medicine Practitioners Association, the
Vice President of the Friends of Scouting and a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators (East Asia Branch). Mr. Tang was Chief Fire Officer
Hong Kong Fire Command from 1993 to 2000. He holds a Master Degree
of Science (Major in Urban Planning), a Bachelor Degree of Law (Hons)
and a Fellow of the Faculty of Law of University of Wolverhampton the
United Kingdom. He was appointed as the Company’s independent
non-executive director on 5 September 2005.

Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony, aged 46, is the Managing Director of
Anthony Kam & Associates Limited, Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kam
holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Wolverhampton,
the United Kingdom, and a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Kam is a fellow member of the HKICPA and
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA"), an associate
member of the ICAEW and a member of the Hong Kong Securities
Institute. Mr. Kam has over 22 years experience in auditing, accounting
and tax matters, both in private and public companies. He was appointed
as the Company’s independent non-executive director on 30 September
2004.
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Senior Management

Mr. But Wui Fai, Cyrus, aged 44, is an associated director (Project and
Sales) of the Group. Mr. But is responsible for management of project
commissioning of the Group. With 21 years of experience in IT and RFID
industry on project management, systems design and implementation. Mr.
But had achieved numerous project assignments in government sectors,
public utilities, tertiary institutions and public listed companies. He worked
for 10 years in an IT consultancy company in Hong Kong before joining
the Group in September 2001.

Miss.
and associated director of the Group. Miss. Yeung is responsible for

Yeung Yuen Chun, Mona, aged 38, is the Financial Controller

managing the Group’s finance and accounting operations, performing
statutory and management reporting. Miss. Yeung has over 15 years in
auditing, accounting and financial analysis. She is an associate member of
the ICAEW and a fellow member of the ACCA and the HKICPA. She holds
a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration (Honours) in Accounting
from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Mr. Lam Kwai Sum, aged 46, is the Senior Project Manager of the Group.
Mr. Lam is responsible for project management, implementation and
maintenance services. With 25 years’ depth knowledge and experience
in project engineering including 15 years in the design, coordination, site
supervision, testing and commissioning in building services and 10 years
of project design and management, tendering and supervision of electrical
installation systems. He joins the Group in August 2001 and has been
involved in several sizeable installation projects in Hong Kong and Macao
including government sectors, public sectors, campus and estates.
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The directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2012.

Principal activities

The principal activity of ITE (Holdings) Limited (the “company”) is
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “group”) during the financial year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Major customers and suppliers
The information in respect of the group’s turnover and purchases

attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
financial year is as follows:
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Percentage of the group’s total

EREBABEE DL
Turnover Purchases
=] REBER
The largest customer RAEP 27% -
Five largest customers in aggregate hARE BT 55% -
The largest supplier BAHIER - 15%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate A ARHEE R - 33%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

Financial statements
The loss of the group for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the state

of the company’s and the group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 36 to 94.
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Reserves
Loss attributable to owners of the company of HK$1,841,113 (2011:
HK$3,432,074) has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in

reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$Nil).

Charitable donations

Charitable donations made by the group during the year amounted to
HK$4,500 (2011: HK$4,000).

Fixed assets

Details of the movements in the fixed assets of the group are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the company are set out
in note 28(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the company’s articles
of association and there was no restriction against such rights under the

laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Directors

The directors during the financial year were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung

Mr. George Roger Manho
Mr. Liu Hoi Wah

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen

Mr. Tang Siu, Henry

Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony

In accordance with Article 108 of the company’s articles of association,
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, Mr. George Roger Manho and Mr. Tang Siu,
Henry retire from the board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ service contracts

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung and Mr. Liu Hoi
Wah have entered into service contracts with the company on 28 March
2012 for an initial fixed term of one year commencing from 1 April 2012
which will continue thereafter until terminated by three months notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

Mr. George Roger Manho has entered into a service contract with
the company on 1 January 2012 for an initial fixed term of one year
commencing from 1 January 2012 which will continue thereafter until
terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other.

Except for the above, none of the directors proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the company, or any of its subsidiaries, within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of each director
and chief executive of the company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), which were notified to the company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, including any interests and short positions
which they have taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the
"GEM Listing Rules”), to be notified to the company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

Interests in issued shares of the company

EERTHRATRKRMD - HBEROKE
SRERNERRAR

RZB-——F=ZA=+—H ' ARARAZEERITHEZR
BEFEBEGIIE157TREISENMRE - ARERE
EAREEE (&R (ESRPEERGD (TFHED]) 5
THE)  BEANGARBRRZANKN - BERD RE
FHEANEREIAR (BREREEBEIINZEHRERR
RRBERAOERIORR) © RBRFIAREE B GGIFE
32 FLAFEMNEZMA - RBEAIFR EWARAFS.46
E5.68IRMBMAMRNVAME RNRQ T KRR 5 PSR
BEIIAT

RRB RS

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

BRO.0IEBTEERBRE
Percentage
of total

Personal Corporate Family Other issued shares
Name of Director interests interests interests interests Total HERITRSE
BEEng BAER hEER RikfEz= Hihkgz &5t Batt
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent 6,108,000 (L) 271,102,348 (L) - - 277,210,348 (L) 29.79%
2ESH g E (Note 2) (Pf5F2)
Mr. George Roger Manho 63,142,254 (L) - - - 63,142,254 (L) 6.79%
B LA
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung 133,628,000 (L) - - - 133,628,000 (L) 14.36%
BRI S A
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen 1,760,000 (L) - - - 1,760,000 (L) 0.19%

FEREL

ITE (Holdings) Limited



Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shares.
sy These shares are beneficially owned by Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited (“Rax-Comm”),

a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Lau Hon Kwong,
Vincent held 67.94% of the entire issued share capital of Rax-Comm.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the directors,
chief executive of the company or their associates had any interests
in the shares or debentures of, or short positions in the shares of, the
company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
including interests or short positions which they have taken or deemed
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the
GEM Listing Rules, were required to be notified to the company and the
Stock Exchange.

Directors’ and chief executive’s rights to acquire
shares or debt securities

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures”, at no time during the year was the company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors and chief
executive of the company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debt securities, including debentures, of the company or
any other body corporate, and none of the directors and chief executive
of the company or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for the securities of the company, or had exercised any
such rights.
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Interests and short positions of shareholders in
the shares and underlying shares

As at 31 March 2012, the following persons, other than a director or chief
executive of the company, had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to any
director or chief executive of the company:

EEHEOITRREARENER R KA

RZZB——F=A=+—8  BRESHEHIFE3IB6KETAT
BENECTMAE R EMARREERITRAEMA
THAL (RAREFRITHREZKRIN) RER AN K
HEER O H A RS MAR

Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares held total issued shares
Name of shareholder FsEBER HEBITRD W
R A RHEE Bk
Rax-Comm (Note 1) 271,102,348 29.13%
Rax-Comm (Fff3E1)
Mr. Lau Hoi Chuen (Note 2) 55,938,388 6.01%
201158 (MiEE2)
Notes: B3
1. These shares have been disclosed as the corporate interests of the relevant 1. ZERMER [EE RITEAIER KRG - HEARG REH
directors in the section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and BN ERRAR | — S REAERESRNEER -
short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”.
2. Mr. Lau Hoi Chuen is the elder brother of Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent. 2. 2B R ETIRIZE N A ERTTET -
Save as disclosed above, the company had not been notified of any other B EXFI#E BN RZZE——F=A=+—0H  RELH

person, other than directors or the chief executive of the company, who
had an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying shares
of the company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and so far is known to any
director or chief executive of the company as at 31 March 2012.

Share option schemes

Details of the company’s share option schemes are set out in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Purchase, sale and redemption of shares of the
company

During the year and up to the date of this report, the company purchased
5,136,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the company
at prices ranging from HK$0.060 to HK$0.080 per share on the Stock
Exchange.
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Number of Price paid per share
shares Aggregate FRIZAER

Month/year repurchased prices paid Highest Lowest
£ /A EEROHE X5 BS BIE

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT
August 2011
—E—F)/\A 1,444,000 114,426 0.080 0.076
November 2011
—E——%+—R 1,788,000 134,490 0.072 0.062
December 2011
—F——%+=A 892,000 63,570 0.075 0.065
January 2012
—F——F—HA 204,000 13,451 0.065 0.064
February 2012
—E——HF—f 808,000 49,133 0.060 0.060

5,136,000 375,070

4,328,000 of repurchased shares were cancelled in January 2012 and
808,000 repurchased shares were pending to be cancelled up to the
reporting date accordingly. The issued share capital of the company was
reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The premium paid on the
repurchase of the shares was charged to the share premium account of
the company. The directors considered that, as the company’s shares were
trading at a discount to the net asset value per share, the repurchases
would increase the net asset value per share of the company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the company’s shares during the
above-mentioned period.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a director of the company had a material

interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the company were
entered into or in existence during the year.

Connected transactions

There were no transactions which should be disclosed in the annual report
as connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Five year summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 95 of the annual report.

Emolument policy

The emolument policy for the employees of the group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.
The company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive to

directors and eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Sufficiency of public float

The company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 March 2012.

Confirmation of independence

The company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all of the independent

non-executive directors are independent.
Auditor

A resolution for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
as auditor of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The company has not changed its auditors in the past

five years.
By order of the board

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report

SEIAVR R SR e

=)

BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

RO V8 it il = 25 o A R

2nd Floor, 625 King’s Road
North Point, Hong Kong
Hwdb AR5 P2 M

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
ITE (Holdings) Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ITE (Holdings)
Limited (the “company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “group”) set out on pages 36 to 94, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2012, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

ZITE (Holdings) Limited & IR 3R &Y
B 2B RS
(RASESEMKZHNERAR)

ANZEED (AT [FHM]) BEEZINENE36E94EHE
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the group as at 31
March 2012, and of the group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012

Lo Wing See

Practising certificate number P04607
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
ARE D E WS

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z=Z—=—F=A=+—HILFE AETIIE)

Note 2012 —B——%F 2011 —&——%

P HK$#E T HK$Z 7T

Turnover =E 2 4 25,903,461 23,417,680
Cost of services rendered EIRHARTEHI A AR (17,972,676) (15,970,626)
Cost of sales D E BRI A (510,952) (955,231)
Gross profit EF 7,419,833 6,491,823
Other gains and losses H Atz &5 1E 5 15,930 109,007
Administrative expenses THER (9,185,607) (9,934,310)
Loss from operations Fed g 2| (1,749,844) (3,333,480)
Finance costs RE AR 6(a) (83,019) (86,547)
Loss before taxation BRBLATE R 6 (1,832,863) (3,420,027)
Income tax FiiS#i 7(a) (8,250) (12,047)
Loss attributable to owners RATEEAFRENLEE

of the company 10 (1,841,113) (3,432,074)
Other comprehensive expense  Hftt2E % H 11
Exchange differences on translating G4M R HyRE =58

foreign operations (106,248) (39,813)
Total comprehensive expense FAZEXHBE

for the year (1,947,361) (3,471,887)
Loss per share SREE 12
Basic and diluted (HK cents) HEARRESE CG(L) (0.20) (0.38)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated P& &VBf st AR I 4R A BMISIRE A — 2615
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Are IS AR ER

At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) EAfgf

F=ZA=+—H AETIIE)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

Note 2012 —2——F 2011 —ZF——4
P sE HK$E T HK$Z 7T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE 14 42,708 85,440
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 17 1,528,980 1,551,174
Trade and other receivables FEUTE 5 Iz . fth FE IR X 18 6,523,335 6,893,854
Financial assets at fair value BRBERIREATERENSREE
through profit or loss 20 768,380 943,410
Income tax recoverable B EEiREy 21 - 8,839
Pledged bank deposits EHEPIRITIE 22 2,206,643 5,816,140
Cash and bank balances R4 RIRTTER 22 2,305,979 2,460,273
13,333,317 17,673,690
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FERE 5 R E b FE SRR 23 3,629,218 4,246,253
Short-term borrowings RHEE 24 - 1,821,100
Provisions B 25 669,045 308,693
Income tax payable RS FTISHR 21 17,109 -
4,315,372 6,376,046
Net current assets REEERE 9,017,945 11,297,644
Net assets EEFE 9,060,653 11,383,084
Capital and reserves ERK 5 28
Share capital &N 9,305,920 9,357,280
Reserves s (245,267) 2,025,804
Total equity S 9,060,653 11,383,084
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 June 2012. EEE@R —T——F A -+ AL ERFETE
Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent Cheng Kwok Hung 2EN e
Director Director o g%

B S O B R AR ALK It SR & A TS SRR A — RB D
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Company Statement of Financial Position

NS F%;'ﬂlji)ﬂi%

At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) R=—Z——F=F=+—H (LLETIIE)

Note 2012 —B——%F 2011 —&——%

P HK$#E T HK$Z 7T
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries B ATRE 16 4,000,000 4,000,000
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHTEB A RItREK 16 - 6,607,372
Deposits and prepayments HEICR T4 18 187,915 194,524
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITHE 22 67,667 81,312

255,582 6,883,208

Current liabilities RBAE
Accrued charges and other payables [E5+% F & H At fE IR TK 23] 473,895 532,697
Net current (liabilities)/assets wE (BB BESHE (218,313) 6,350,511
Net assets EEBE 3,781,687 10,350,511
Capital and reserves BERR G 28
Share capital [N 9,305,920 9,357,280
Reserves i (5,524,233) 993,231
Total equity MR 3,781,687 10,350,511

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 June 2012. EFEE®R T — XA~ +HRERRETIE

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent Cheng Kwok Hung 2EN BB ) 2
Director Director F F

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated I EIFTEERAERK L F4R & M ISHRE M —FBH °

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in +Equ'ty
I\‘/—.l_\ 1; : \ “‘E“Z\ @J ig

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) §,27:¢ A=+—RIEFE (ABTIE)

Reserves
i
Share Share Merger Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
SEESR
R RAEE AbHRE ] RitEE &t

HK$7B 7T HK$7E 7T HK$E T HK$ETT HK$B T HK$7B 7T

Balance at 1 April 2010 —Z-TENA-RER 9,033,160 22,570,030 10,748,910 431,880  (31,005,891) 11,778,089

Total comprehensive expense  ERNZE X H 48

for the year - - - (39,813) (3,432,074) (3,471,887)
Repurchase of shares EIEERR D (FitEnote 28(a)i)
(note 28(a)(ii)) (2,560) (24,018) - - - (26,578)

Issue of shares upon exercise of  {T{EBEAL M 21T
share options (note 28(a)(ii))  (ffzEnote 28(a)i) 326,680 2,776,780 = - - 3,103,460

Balance at 31 March 2011 NZE—F=A=1+—H
and 1 April 2011 k—T——FNMA—H#% 9,357,280 25,322,792 10,748,910 392,067 (34,437,965 11,383,084

Total comprehensive expense  FRNZEX HAEH

for the year - - - (106,248) (1,841,113) (1,947,361)
Repurchase of shares EIEERH (B #Enote 28(a)(i)

(note 28(a)(ii)) (51,360) (323,710) - - - (375,070)
Balance at 31 March 2012 R-E——F=A=1+—H#&H 9,305,920 24,999,082 10,748,910 285,819  (36,279,078) 9,060,653

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated  pias g pft = A 4R I 42 & BATS SR 1) — 2615 ©
financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
FeaRenhax

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z=F—=—4=A=+—HILFE (LLBTIIE)
Note 2012 —Z——F == —
i HK$B T HK$A 7T
Operating activities R
Loss before taxation BT R E 1R (1,832,863) (3,420,027)
Adjustments for: NP S IE(EL I
— Loss on disposal of financial assets — HEZBERREATER
at fair value through profit or loss K& R E ERETE 5 2,489 4,635
— Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets ~ — B BIERFE AT ERENE
at fair value through profit or loss REEMNATE
&8 () 5 229,862 (55,968)
— Interest income — R BUA 5 (22,875) (27,972)
— Finance costs — BVERAR 6(a) 83,019 86,547
— Depreciation —hE 6(c) 56,179 106,922
— Exchange difference —[ERER (108,252) (36,512)
— Loss on disposal of fixed assets —HEETEEEE 6(c) - 1,004
— Provisions — B 6(c) 858,147 455,068
— Reversal of unused provisions — KB FH B 5 o 6(c) (497,795) (437,594)
— Write-off of inventories — FEME 6(c) 163,868 165,582
Operating loss before changes REEESBHAINSEHE
in working capital (1,068,221) (3,158,315)
Increase in inventories FEEM (141,674) (117,179)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JEURE 5 R E At e U 7K
other receivables A () 370,519 (1,963,476)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FEFTE 5 X E A FEfT IR 3R
other payables w1 (617,035) 132,873
Cash used in operations E£BFARS (1,456,411) (5,106,097)
Interest paid DAHFLE (83,019) (86,547)
Tax refund REIFR 29,745 139,363
Tax paid EAIELR (12,047) (87,081)
Net cash used in operating activities REXBARESFE (1,521,732) (5,140,362)
Investing activities REEE
Purchase of fixed assets BEETEE (13,228) (17,222)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits BE=EANEHRFER
with terms over three months A/ (3En) 476,000 (476,000)
Increase in financial assets at fair L%E SIRIRA T ERIER
value through profit or loss SRVEEEIN (57,321) (892,077)
Interest received 2 UAE 22,875 27,972
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEELE (A B&3E
investing activities 428,326 (1,357,327)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated  Hff#&IK st BRI Z47 A B HRE M — 0%

financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

S ATH AL =
,Z\\/T\ (=] Eﬁﬁ//lbii‘%
BE-T——F=A=+—HIFE CAETIIME)

Note 2012 =2—=F 2011 —ZF——%F
B aE HK$E T HK$ 7T
Financing activities REER
Proceeds from issue of new shares T REAREM TR A
upon exercise of share options Fr{S 3538 28(a)(iii) - 3,103,460
Repurchase of shares B B8 A% 0 28(a)(ii) (375,070) (26,578)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits, net BEERRITETFERD 3,609,497 11,807,569
Decrease in bank loans, net SRITIEEFERD (1,821,100) (1,178,900)
Net cash generated from RMETHELERESFE
financing activities 1,413,327 13,705,551
Net increase in cash and RERASEEYFEEM
cash equivalents 319,921 7,207,862
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April REUA—HHWREREESEEY 1,984,273 (5,219,967)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes N T SR S R ) 1,785 (3,622)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March R=A=+—HHELRELZEY 22 2,305,979 1,984,273

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

BT 2k f

General information

ITE (Holdings) Limited (the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of
the principal place of business of its operating subsidiaries is Units
1005-07, Level 10, Manulife Provident Funds Place, 345 Nathan
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The company’s shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

“company”) was incorporated in the

The company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the company collectively
referred to as the “group”) are set out in note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), except where indicated otherwise, which is also
the functional currency of the company.

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “"GEM Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the group and the company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

(a)
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(b)

(o)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2012 comprise the company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the significant accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 33.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. Control exists
when the group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that are
presently exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)ii)).
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received or receivable.

2
(b)

(c)

AR e B RS HRaR M T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= AR

SRE SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(d)

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(iii).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms

and 4 years
— Furniture and fixtures 4 years
— Computer and other 4 years

equipment

The useful life of an asset, its depreciation method and residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

2
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(h)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 2(i)i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Service contracts

When the outcome of a service contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. When the outcome of a service contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Service contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period
are recorded at the net amount of costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses and progress billings, and are
presented in the statement of financial position as the “Gross
amount due from customers for service contract work” (as an
asset) or the “Gross amount due to customers for service contract
work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid by
the customers are included in the statement of financial position
under “Trade and other receivables”. Amounts received before
the related work is performed are included in the statement of
financial position under “Trade and other payables”.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either
investments classified as held for trading or designated as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. These
investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these investments are

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BE—Z——#=A=+—HI-EE (LETIIE)

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

If any event or change in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, an impairment loss is determined

and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other receivables carried at cost or amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=—F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade receivables included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each
reporting period to identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- fixed assets
- investments in subsidiaries; and
= goodwill

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwiill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

0] Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the

relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=—F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

)

(k)

0)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
company or the group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow

statement.
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 2(o)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due

in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee (being the transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in

profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(o)

(ii)

(p)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the group or the company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the

present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation

which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into HK$ at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the
date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Service revenue

Service revenue comprises revenue from smartcard systems, radio
frequency identification (“RFID”), information technology (“IT")
and related service contracts.

Revenue from a fixed price service contract is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to estimated total
contract costs for the contract. When the outcome of a service
contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be

recoverable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire B ERER TR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BE—Z——#=A=+—HI-EE (LETIIE)

2  Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEEF XK (&)

(@) Revenue recognition (continued) (q) W=MER (E)

(ii) Consultancy income (ii) B8 RS AR A UL A
Consultancy income is recognised when the consultancy services B R AR R RIS R o
are rendered.

(iii) Income from maintenance services (iii) IRERFE WA
Income from maintenance services is recognised on a straight-line RERBHOVARBRERSE S NIGTIRERERE
basis over the term of the maintenance service contracts. e
Income received or receivable in respect of services which have #E B E B3 ARTAR TR AR A B W sk FE A R
not been completed on or before the end of reporting period MR R RIRLEREWA ©
are shown in the statement of financial position as deferred
maintenance income.

(iv) Sales of goods (iv) HEEM
Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered at the WREEmEXEEEFPNMEN  BEXFPERRE
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time when o N LB 75 HE 60 A8 A [ B K% [B] B T LA R o WA
the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and BIEGER N EAMEER - IE?D%EE@E%%
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value-added tax or other HEAR -
sales taxes, if any, and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(v) Dividend income (v) % &
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the EMERENREWMAEREEB M IRER SR
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend. R e

(vi) Interest income (vi) FEUA

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having
a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research and development activities is expensed in

profit or loss in the year in which it is incurred.
Operating lease charges

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the group are classified as operating leases.

Where the group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the

leased asset.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the year in which
they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BE—Z——#=A=+—HI-EE (LETIIE)

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
(v)  Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the group if that person:

(a) has control or joint control over the group;
(b) has significant influence over the group; or
(0) is a member of the key management personnel of

the group or the group’s parent.

(ii) An entity is related to the group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(a) The entity and the group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

(o) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the group or an
entity related to the group.

(f) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,

that person in their dealings with the entity.

56 ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these

criteria.
Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the group and the company. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the consolidated financial

statements:

- HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

- Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)
The impact of development is discussed below:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a related party.
As a result, the group has re-assessed the identification of related
parties and concluded that the revised definition does not have
any material impact on the group’s related party disclosures in
the current and previous period. HKAS 24 (revised 2009) also
introduces modified disclosure requirements for government-
related entities. This does not impact the group because the group
is not a government-related entity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BE—Z——#=A=+—HI-EE (LETIIE)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard introduces a
number of amendments to the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
7, Financial instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures about the
group’s financial instruments in note 29 have been conformed to
the amended disclosure requirements. These amendments do not
have any material impact on the classification, recognition and
measurements of the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements in the current and previous periods.

Turnover
Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to customers

and revenue from services rendered. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during the

3

4

BREREH (&)

REBEVBRSEL (T —FF) tBFEUK
BRERNBTREH LA - #HESIANZRERBE
REMETE - 298 MARBE SR TANKED
HAFETHRERE - IhEEFTH B A sB & HE
B MER AR BN DM - FER Nt B B
BEA®E -

LR

ERBEREEHERTEPHHEEREHIRFE N
o FARRRERENTED BT ¢

year is as follows:

2012 =2 ——F 2011 —&F——4%F
HKS$#& T HKS$A 7T
Provision of smartcard systems, BB RER - GEER &
RFID and IT services AR AR TS
— Service revenue — R Es 11,941,203 9,093,123
— Income from maintenance services — RERBIA 8,704,725 8,851,774
— Sales of service related products — IHE RSB E® 932,642 1,444,017
21,578,570 19,388,914
Consultancy income B R AR TS U 4,324,891 4,028,766
25,903,461 23,417,680
5  Other gains and losses 5 HtthzmREE
2012 ==—=% 2011 = ——%
HKS$#E T HK$%E 7T
Interest income B A 22,875 27,972
Exchange gain, net bE R WEFE 114,684 =
Dividend income ISR ON 20,441 =
Loss on disposal of financial assets HE B RBERREATE
at fair value through profit or loss RIEMNSREENER (2,489) (4,635)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets BRERIREATERENS /M
at fair value through profit or loss BENATE (BR), W (229,862) 55,968
Government sponsorship income BRAT & B A 59,200 -
Sundry income EH AU A 31,081 29,702
15,930 109,007
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 Loss before taxation

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e B s HaR M e

T—_HFZHA=+—HLFE AETIIE)

#

~—
==

6 KRBEAEBRE

BB RIEEE MR, (GEA)

2012 =&——F 2011 =ZE——%F
HK$% T HKS$®E T
() Finance costs: (@) BB
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITEERBELFE 83,019 86,547
(b) Staff costs (b) BT
(including directors’ remuneration) *: (BREESHE) "
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERAMET 14,475,045 14,754,046
Retirement scheme contributions (note 26) RIRGTEI 0 (FI5E26) 596,170 626,337
15,071,215 15,380,383
() Other items: (0 EMIRR :
Auditor’s remuneration Gl e 320,000 340,000
Cost of inventories # FER A 4,218,607 5,507,503
Depreciation e 56,179 106,922
Development costs ORI 479,956 739,223
Exchange loss b 5 518 - 5,320
Provisions (note 25) Bt (fE25) 858,147 455,068
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEREEEEE - 1,004
Operating lease charges: RETHESH
minimum lease payments XA ERIE
— hire of properties — WA E 1,741,849 1,807,728
— hire of office equipment — RAElRERE 42,042 43,236
Reversal of unused provisions (note 25) RENRREEIRE (H25) (497,795) (437,594)
Write-off of inventories FEMH 163,868 165,582
# Staff costs included HK$364,344 (2011: HK$672,694) relating to & 8 T K AN 8 364,344 T (ZF — — F ¢
development costs, which amount is also disclosed separately in note 672,694 70) M EERA » UL EMEKAE £/t
6(c). H6(QB I -
# Cost of inventories included HK$163,868 (2011: HK$165,582) relating & FE K KB 163,888 T (Z & — — F:
to write-off of inventories, which amount is also disclosed separately in 165,582 7T) fF &N - b S 1F EMsHE EM &
note 6(c). 6(C) B HFE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2011-2012 F3&
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BE—Z——#=A=+—HI-EE (LETIIE)

7 Income tax in the consolidated statement 7 HREZXHEWERWAEH
of comprehensive income

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) #HAZHEWEKRFHIER
comprehensive income represents:

2012 —&——%& 2=

HKS$#E T HK$# T
Hong Kong profits tax BRAEH
— Provision for the year — FAEE 8,250 12,047

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% FANBBMEHERERTRFA165% (=ZF
(2011: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. ——1%F :16.5%) 7T & - BN ERBEFIFLIE
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate Al S BIRIRIRITIAN - RRERIEMIZAEE L LR
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant jurisdictions. KEORITREFTH o

No provision for income tax in the People’s Republic of China (the REBRFEAWEPEARLME ([FE]) &R
“PRC"”) and Macao have been made in the consolidated financial PIa] 1 A )+ B 7S R 3R 30 4 AR B R OB P FE ER
statements as the group did not have any assessable profits for BM(ZE——F &) o

taxation purpose in the PRC or Macao during the year (2011: HK$Nil).

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) ZBIBEXHREFEENERRENFALD

loss at applicable tax rate: mT
2012 —ZE——fF 20011 =&—%&
HKS$B T HKS$# T
Loss before taxation BRI E R (1,832,863) (3,420,027)
Notional tax at the applicable RI%16.5% AR R/ ERRTIE
tax rate of 16.5% (302,422) (564,304)
Tax effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries  Ff/B A B4 & 5 5 & AR HY
operating in other jurisdictions (Note) T2 (fizt) (58,577) (40,812)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR ERNH BT E 2,011 597
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARMRANTI B2 (2,636) (404)
Tax effect of prior year's tax losses utilised HREFHIEEENHETE (157,813) (8,766)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised  RIERAE s = 5B RS £ 18,640 (9,419)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised KRR M A BHIEEEORETE 509,047 651,312
Others Hit - (16,157)
Actual tax expense Frisfi sz il 8,250 12,047
Note: B2
The applicable tax rate of the company and those subsidiaries that are ARRIREREAZTMOMBRARNERHER165%
incorporated in Hong Kong is 16.5% (2011: 16.5%). The applicable tax rates of (Z2——F :165%) MAFFEZMHNERFHNE
the subsidiaries of the company incorporated outside Hong Kong are as follows: AR ENT :
i ITE (China) Limited is subjected to tax rate of 25% (2011: 25%). i. EEMYEEERGARARNR EA25% (=
T——F :25%) °
i ITE Sistema (Macau) Limitada is subject to a progressive tax rate from ii. BEZRSFCRP) BERATDNFEN X RI%E
3% t0 12% (2011: 3% to 12%). 12% (ZZ2——% :3%%12%) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Directors’ remuneration 8 EEMS
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing BIEBIZER EMARREARREOIE 161165 E
Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is WEEMEFBERT :
as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2012
fees in kind contributions Total
& ER —E-—CfF
EEMS REYFIZ= EIRETEIBER &5t
HK$E T HK$#% T HK$#E T HK$E 7T
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent BE LA 230,000 514,116 12,000 756,116
Mr. George Roger Manho BRI E 50,000 - - 50,000
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung B S 230,000 385,950 12,000 627,950
Mr. Liu Hoi Wah ZGELE 50,000 - - 50,000
560,000 900,066 24,000 1,484,066
Independent non-executive B IETES
directors
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen ZHERE L 146,333 - - 146,333
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony BRE kA 50,000 - - 50,000
Mr. Tang Siu, Henry AR AE 50,000 - - 50,000
246,333 - - 246,333
Total A&t 806,333 900,066 24,000 1,730,399
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2011
fees in kind contributions Total
T~ ERL —T——F
EE5Me KRB & RIRETEIfER as
HK$/E7T HK$& 7T HK$E7T HK$E T
Executive directors MITES
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent 244 230,000 504,276 12,000 746,276
Mr. George Roger Manho EEEEE 50,000 - - 50,000
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung BB A 5 230,000 388,400 12,000 630,400
Mr. Liu Hoi Wah gL E 50,000 - - 50,000
560,000 892,676 24,000 1,476,676
Independent non-executive B IFHITESR
directors
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen ZHERE L 240,000 - - 240,000
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony BZE A 50,000 - - 50,000
Mr. Tang Siu, Henry AR AE 50,000 - - 50,000
340,000 - - 340,000
Total &=t 900,000 892,676 24,000 1,816,676
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BE-Z——#=A=+—HI-EE (LETIIE)

9 Individuals with highest emoluments 9

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2011:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2011:

three) individuals are as follows:

REFHAL
REMBBHFALS WL (ZF——%: M)

REZ  RENMEEHNKES  Hf=f (=%
—— % =f) RS FATHMSEENT

2012 —ZE—=F 2011 —&B——4

HKS$# T HK$A 7T
Salaries and other emoluments e REAMIE 1,374,024 1,365,180
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET SR 36,000 36,000
1,410,024 1,401,180

The emoluments of the three (2011: three) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following band:

= (ZF——F =) REFALTHHS N T
THIEE -

2012 =&F—=& 2011 == ——%

Number of Number of
individuals individuals
ATEE ALT#HE
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 ZT 7T — 1,000,000 70 3 3
10 Loss attributable to owners of the 10 ZAAREEAFREMLEE

company
The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the company

includes a loss of HK$6,193,754 (2011: HK$88,651) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the company.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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11 Other comprehensive expense 11 HttZ2EXH
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive BEAMEZEX HORBZENT
expense:
2012 =8—=% 2011 =2 —F
Before tax Tax Net-of-tax Before tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
BREAEE BEXE BRERLE KRUAeE  BHEXWN BREizesE
HKS$E T HKS$E 7T HKS$% T HK$#ETT HK$ETT HK$ETT
Exchange differences on TBINETSHY
translating foreign HEEE
operations 106,248 - 106,248 39,813 - 39,813
12 Loss per share 12 BRER

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the company of HK$1,841,113 (2011:
HK$3,432,074) and the weighted average of 933,796,863 (2011:
912,904,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated
as follows:

EREXAEBRDEREARAEEAELER
1,841,138 (ZF — —4F : 3,432,074%8 L) &
FRE BT E B IN#E 5 1% 933,796,863 0%
—T——% :912,904,0008%) * sFEWMT :

2012 =2——% 2011 =2 ——%
HKS$#E T HK$E T

Issued ordinary shares at 1 April A — BB E BT R 935,728,000 903,316,000
Effect of repurchase of shares BB D IR (FiFE28(a)ii))

(note 28 (a)(ii) (1,931,137) (15,386)
Effect of issue of shares upon exercise BEITEERENTE

of share options (note 28 (a)iii)) (F7E28(a)iii)) - 9,603,386
Weighted average number R=A=T—HBEER

of ordinary shares at 31 March INAETFI9EL 933,796,863 912,904,000

As the company does not have any potential dilutive ordinary
shares during the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: Nil), basic
and diluted loss per share are the same.

BE_ T —F-A=1tHIFEXEEE#
SBERE (T ——%F: #)  REANESEHREA

A o
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BE—Z——#=A=+—HI-EE (LETIIE)

13 Segment reporting 13 HPBHE

The group’s operating and reportable segments are (i) smartcard REERKEERERD BT RS ER RS - 5T

systems, RFID and IT services; and (ii) consultancy services. SE B & & BT AR TS LA R (BRI RS © B s ik

Information regarding these segments is reported below. DEERZ2|/AOT -

Smartcard systems,
RFID and IT services Consultancy services Consolidated
BRFAR - HERE
RERN RS AR &8
012=8--F 011=F—F 2012=F--F 2011 =F——F 2012-5-=F 011 =F—F
HK$7& T HK$/B 7T HK$7B T HK$BTT HK$ BT HK$H7T

TURNOVER EEL
Revenue from external customers  45h & iz 21,578,570 19,388,914 4,324,891 4,028,766 25,903,461 23,417,680
RESULTS E3
Segment profit/loss) DEER/ (B8) 409,636 (1,601,418) 100,978 (32,439) 510,614 (1,633,857)
Unallocated corporate revenue KPR ENE 15,930 109,007
Unallocated corporate expenses R FHERESH (2,276,388) (1,808,630)
Loss from operations TEER (1,749,844) (3,333,480)
Finance costs BEAKA (83,019) (86,547)
Loss before taxation Wi AIEE (1,832,863) (3,420,027)
Income tax Fi5H (8,250) (12,047)
Loss for the year ERER (1,841,113) (3,432,074)
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PEEE 7472,113 7,480,304 434,395 855,640 7,907,108 8,335,944
Unallocated assets AFPOREE 5,468,917 9,423,186
Total assets wEE 13,376,025 17,759,130
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities PHERE 3,365,358 3,608,940 459,009 413,309 3,824,367 4,022,249
Unallocated liabilities AFHREE 491,005 2,353,797
Total liabilities BaR 4315372 6,376,046
OTHER INFORMATION At g
Capital expenditure BRRER 13,228 17,222 - - 13,228 17,222
Depreciation e 53,953 102,286 2,226 4,636 56,179 106,922
Loss on disposal of fixed assets ~ HEETFEERE - 1,004 - - - 1,004
Provisions B 803,600 404,110 54,547 50,958 858,147 455,068
Reversal of unused provisions REN R A (445,023) (383,262) (52,772) (54,332) (497,795) (437,594)
Wirite-off of inventories FEME 163,868 165,582 - - 163,868 165,582
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=—F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

Segment reporting (continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

- Segment profit/(loss) represented profit earned by/
(loss from) each segment without allocation of certain
central administration costs, other income, finance costs,
exchange difference and income tax expense.

- All assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than prepaid central administration costs, income tax
recoverable, pledged bank deposits and cash and bank
balances.

- All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than accrued central administration costs, income tax
payable and short-term borrowings.

Geographical information

The group’s operations are principally located in Hong Kong,
Macao and the PRC.

The group’s revenue from external customers and information

13 7oEH|E (8)
BTEESHZENKREARERNDE
= Fr25M 5 ans /(Ei8) HELE D
AR RITHRACAS ~ HAbUA miﬁﬁk$ :
BN ZBUKEHREE T 25 &E5 268
P EH A (LR EE) -
= BRIEM AR RITEAAR « AfRE SR - BIR

WRTERARR S KRS SEDI - Fil
BEMARTEZHNAH -

- BRIENRT AR RITHUR A ~ RN PRISTA R AEHA
fEEN  EABHIETEEFDHE °

(a) HIHER

AEBET2HEERE  RPIARPEIRLEE

RERE BN T P Yt R IER ENE B I 2 =R 40

about its non-current assets by geographical location of the assets N
are detailed below:
Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
HIHNE F U FREBEE
2012 =F——F 2011 =ZF—F 2012 =T—=—F 2011 =ZF—%F
HKS$#E T HK$&TT HKS$#E T HK$2 T
Hong Kong B 21,007,626 17,062,060 38,403 74,900
Macao S 4,873,215 6,299,366 2,246 5,335
PRC Fh - 56,254 2,059 5,205
Other locations Hthih 5 22,620 - - -
25,903,461 23,417,680 42,708 85,440

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 March 2012, there was one (2011: Nil)
customer who accounted for over 10% of total revenue of the
group with revenue of HK$6,954,854 (2011: HK$NiIl) related to
the smartcard systems, RFID and IT services segment.

(b) FHEEXEEFEH

HE-Z——F=A=1+—RHLEFE ' —u (=%
—— & RF) BEFERS - STEHAI REMBR
R DR W A LB AU BIB10% @ &
ZEBRFEMINE 56,954,854 0 (ZE——F ¢
=HT) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BE—Z——#=A=+—HI-EE (LETIIE)
14 Fixed assets 14 EBEEEE
The group AEME
Computer
Leasehold Furniture and other
improvements and fixtures equipment Total
ERK
HENELE BRREE Hinzk s &t
HK$B T HK$ BT HK$E T HK$ETT

Cost: B

1 April 2010 RZZE—TFMHA—H 539,133 407,654 2,818,668 3,765,455
Additions NE - 402 16,820 17,222
Disposals e - (16,342) (62,183) (78,525)
Exchange adjustments ik - 1,844 7,634 9,478
At 31 March 2011 and —T——f=A=t—H

1 April 2011 &:g——iﬂlﬂ —H 539,133 393,558 2,780,939 3,713,630
Additions NE - - 13,228 13,228
Disposals HE - - (347,000) (347,000)
Exchange adjustments i 57 - 1,261 5,222 6,483
At 31 March 2012 N_E——F=A=+—H 539,133 394,819 2,452,389 3,386,341
Accumulated depreciation: RitE

1 April 2010 RZZE—TFNF—H 539,133 394,697 2,655,802 3,589,632
Charge for the year FANE - 8,076 98,846 106,922
Written back on disposals HERTEH = (16,124) (61,397) (77,521)
Exchange adjustments i i - 1,743 7,414 9,157
At 31 March 2011 and f——i B=+—H

1 April 2011 —Z——FmA—H 539,133 388,392 2,700,665 3,628,190
Charge for the year Em?ﬁ% - 3,282 52,897 56,179
Written back on disposals HERTHE - - (347,000) (347,000)
Exchange adjustments ik - 1,192 5,072 6,264
At 31 March 2012 NZE——F=A=+—H 539,133 392,866 11,634 3,343,633
Carrying amount: IREE :
At 31 March 2012 ——#=HF=+—H - 1,953 40,755 42,708
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=RA=+—H - 5,166 80,274 85,440

66 ITE (Holdings) Limited



For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B RS HRaR M T

BE_Z-—_F=ZA=+—HLFE CNVETIIE)

15 Goodwill 15 B8
The group
rEH
HK$A 7T
Cost RS
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011, R=—T—ZTFMWA—R - —F—F=/A=+—H -
1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012 —E——FMA-BR-_FE——F=A=+—H 9,507,923
Accumulated amortisation EiEEH
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011, R-ZE—ZTFMWAE—H  —BE——F=A=1+—H
1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012 —E——FNA-AK_T——_F=-A=+—H 3,169,307
Accumulated impairment loss Z2RBEEER
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011, R-_ZT—ZTFMPA—HB - —T——F=A=1+—H8 "
1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012 —E——FNA-AK_T——F=A=+—H 6,338,616
Carrying amount IR E B
At 31 March 2012 N-—E——F=A=+—8° -
At 31 March 2011 R-E——F=H=+—H -
16 Investments in subsidiaries 16 MEBARKRE

The company

RAT]
2012 —Z——% 2011 ———%
HK$#E T HKS$HTT
Unlisted investments, at cost FEEMIRE (3RAAN) 4,000,000 4,000,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries Al BIEENGIL S 28,390,673 28,882,297
Less: Impairment loss B BB EE (28,390,673) (22,274,925)

- 6,607,372

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free

and repayable on demand.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries

which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

BT A RIR T REER £ REARERE

NTREEFEANRES BEXBENRER
BIFE - FREEHIN - R ENE R E B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

SRE SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Z—_F=A=+—HIEFE (AETIIE)

16 MEARKRE (&)

Place of Percentage of Particulars of
incorporation/ ownership issued and Principal
Name of company establishment interest paid up capital activities
3 Frib s BRTR
NETECE FR 3L 1tk B R BRREANFE TEEK
Indirect
i3
2012 2011
8= -4
ITE Smartcard Solutions Hong Kong 100% 100% 3,418,336 shares of Provision of smartcard systems
Limited B HK$1 each and related services and sales
BERGBER AR 3,418,336% of service related products
(BikEME1T) REZ R RS RABERS &
HE RSB Em
RF Tech Limited Hong Kong 100% 100% 2 shares of Manufacture and research of
B HK$1 each smartcard system and service
28% (B EE1T) related products
HERAEERSESHEREER
[TE (China) Limited (Note) PRC 100% 100% United States dollars Provision of smartcard systems
e RS R fh ("Us$") 700,000 and related services
BEAT] (M) 700,0003 7T REBEERRG AR
Quesco Systems Limited Hong Kong 100% 100% 6,500,000 shares of Provision of IT consultancy
ERRGEREERAA B HK$1 each services
6,500,000/ REE AR R RTS
(BREME1T)
[TE Sistema (Macau) Macao 100% 100% Macao Patacas Provision of smartcard systems
Limitada SEFY ("MOP") 25,000 and related services and sales

BEEL ORF) BRAR

25,0007

of service related products
REE R RS AR &
HERBIERER

Note:

operating period of 20 years expiring on 26 June 2021.

ITE (China) Limited is a wholly foreign owned enterprise with an

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the group which, in the

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year

or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the group.

To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

i

LSRR

EERRABEBRRBAAE—REINED

¥ LEBAE-t+F RZTE=Z—F~A=+AX

B e

ERITFEERRIBFEAEEAFEXEAR
AEEFEETZHARBONMBAR - EERAR
Yk BB A R IE B E SRR RARIIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=—F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

Inventories 17

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position

FE

REFEEMBRRRNFEREE

comprise:
The group
REH
2012 =2 ——F 2011 —&——&F
HKS$#E T HK$A T
Raw materials EME 400,637 762,424
Work in progress past Uar 755,968 432,422
Finished goods UK 372,375 356,328
1,528,980 1,551,174
Trade and other receivables 18 FEWEZ Kk HMEWIRR
The group The company
TEE b /N
2012 =F—=—F 2011 =ZF—F 2012=F—=F 2011 ZT——F
HKS#E T HK$A T HKSB T HK$A 7T
Trade receivables BB FIR 1,825,352 2,116,576 - -
Other receivables H A R IR TR 678,385 462,637 - =
Gross amount due from R FHRS
customers for service BHTIEFIE
contract work (note 19) mazE (MisE19) 2,413,385 2,740,551 - =
Retention money receivables FEUIRZ & 454,849 187,457 - -
Deposits and prepayments HE G 34 1,151,364 1,386,633 187,915 194,524
6,523,335 6,893,854 187,915 194,524

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from certain rental
deposits and retention money receivables of HK$45,353 (2011:
HK$641,389), of the group are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

BELEET S RERRE S RE45,3538T (=
T——%F :641,389/87L) - AEENMARKE
Z R EMEEIRRIARAR —FAA X ERRE
A -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a)

(b)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the

18

(a)

BEZZT——F=A=1+—HILFE (AFETIIE)

BWE SR EMEWRRRK (&)

TR 5 2R FE W B 5 iR SR A9 IR 82 0 A 40

end of the reporting period is as follows: A
The group
rEH
2012 = ZF—=F 2011 =& ——%F
HKS$#E T HK$E 7T

Current ZKHA 146,441 279,248
Less than 1 month past due B —E A 1,235,287 1,114,299
1 month to 3 months past due M —EAZ=={@H 204,585 663,544

More than 3 months but less than B ERA = A A DR —5F
1 year past due 239,039 51,595
More than 1 year past due BHERRE—F - 7,890
Amounts past due AHEAEEE 1,678,911 1,837,328
1,825,352 2,116,576

Trade receivables are due within 45 days (2011: 45 days) from the
date of billing. Further details on the group’s credit policy are set
out in note 29(a).

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired are set out in note 18(a).

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are considered fully recoverable. The
group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

(b)

EREZRFAFZEALISK (ZF——F:45
R) REIH - FIBEHNHE29@) A E B EER

s

& o
REBENERE 5 iR

PT 18 (a) FE MU E B IR SR B R e D AT IR AR A0 =K
2 EEERE

FEUUIR R A B B SR E A KM B8 B R R
B HERIERELERENSUEFPEAEER

Rifsix - RBBELR  EEERELFEHRY

BRAEELRELEE - NAEBRARE UL EERER
WS RY -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=—F=A=+—HILFE (LLETIIE)

19 Service contracts in progress

19 ETHFHNERBESH

The group
rEE
2012 =&2—=F 2011 —&——&F
HK$#E T HK$A T
Contract costs incurred plus recognised ESBEBEERAN BN RFIRE
profits less recognised losses to date A7 R A& 18 4,156,166 4,865,578
Less: Progress billings B EENRERE (1,871,511) (2,606,692)
2,284,655 2,258,886
Gross amount due from customers for BB FERRSAATIIE
service contract work (note 18) FIEsREE (fE18) 2,413,385 2,740,551
Gross amount due to customers for ENEEPHRGSAEAIE
service contract work (note 23) SRR (FFE23) (128,730) (481,665)
2,284,655 2,258,886
20 Financial assets at fair value through profit 20 ZEBERIREAFEEENSHME
or loss =3
The group
rEE
2012 —8——F 2011 —&=——%
HKS$#E T HKS$#TT
Listed securities — held-for-trading LS - HEEE
— Equity securities in Hong Kong — BN ERES 768,380 943,410
Market value of listed securities FTESNTISER 768,380 943,410

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current bid

prices in an active market.

BB -

FTBEERES A FESE

RE A T 5 0 3 B 35

ANNUAL REPORT 2011-2012 F3&

71



72
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEZZT——F=A=1+—HILFE (AFETIIE)

21 Income tax in the consolidated statement 21 HREMBEMRRRNAEH
of financial position
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) #REMBARRKNAEHRIE :
financial position represents:
The group
rEH
2012 =2—=F 2011 =T—%
HKS$#E T HK$A&TT
Provision for Hong Kong profits tax FRBBHNEREE
for the year 8,250 12,047
Provisional profits tax paid BB BRI (12,047) (41,792)
(3,.797) (29,745)
Balance of profits tax provision BEFENSNE SR
relating to prior years 20,906 20,906
Income tax payable/(recoverable) AN VAGIEENCEES 17,109 (8,839)
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) RERELEMEEE
At 31 March 2012, the group has not recognised deferred RZZE—ZF=A=+—H AR BENERT &
tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of approximately MEHRWBBH B EIL DB E - ANEE AR5 IE
HK$45,187,000 (2011: HK$43,158,000) and deductible temporary BB M R R AR E T I8 & E 4 A45,187,00078
differences of approximately HK$774,000 (2011: HK$707,000) T (ZZ——4 : 43,158,000/870) * MAMERHNE
due to the uncertainty of the related tax benefits being R Z A /R774,000% 7T (ZF——4 : 707,000/%
realised through future taxable profits. The unused tax losses J0) ° RTEREE 494,971,000 T (ZT ——F -
of approximately HK$4,971,000 (2011: HK$4,296,000) can be 4,296,000757T,) A] A DA 2282 22 5K 2K L 4F /O B 5
carried forward for offset against the taxable profits of subsequent DA - i b B8 A Al ok AEAS o
years for five years following the loss year. Other unused tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.
()  Deferred tax liabilities () ELBEEE
At 31 March 2012, there were no significant unrecognised RZB——F=A=+—H  WRBEAERRHE

deferred tax liabilities (2011: HK$Nil).

ITE (Holdings) Limited

REEHBAEE (ZT——F : T#T) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) &

=

=T

iR e B s HaR M T

——FZA=+—HLFE NETIIE)

deposit rates except for time deposits which earns interest at
fixed rate. Time deposits are made for terms of three months
(2011:
requirements of the group.

two to six months), depending on the immediate cash

Included in time deposits and cash and bank balances of the
group is a total amount of HK$588,205 (2011: HK$705,743)
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) as at 31 March 2012.
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

22 Cash and cash equivalents 22 BHERBESEZEY
The group The company
FEE AAFH
2012 =2-=F 2011 ZT——F 2012=F-=F 2011 ZF——F
HKS$E 7T HK$H T HK$7E T HK$# T
Cash and bank balances B NIR1TES 1,808,456 1,984,273 67,667 81,312
Time deposits TEHFER 2,704,166 6,292,140 - -
4,512,622 8,276,413 67,667 81,312
Less: Pledged bank A BERRITER
deposits (note 24(c)) (BF3E24(0)) (2,206,643) (5,816,140) - =
Cash and bank balances HMBRRRNRE
in the statement of KR T#E %
financial position 2,305,979 2,460,273 67,667 81,312
Time deposits with terms BR={ARnEH
over three months TEHFER - (476,000)
Cash and cash equivalents AR EHERNRS
in the consolidated &ﬁi”ﬁ%
cash flow statement 2,305,979 1,984,273
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank B 7E BT SRAR 1% [E FE A R W ER A 249N - SRITE A

BWAB M EARE G B RITEBFRA KM -

EHERFH-—R=EA (ZZ——F: MEAAZE
NMEA)  RFAEBELERSFRNEZREMIE
RZZE——F=RA=+—H THERERE KRR

1T#E AP B15588,205 8 TTRAARBSIE (=2 —

—%F : 705,743 7T) °
1R 15 Hh B SINE B 2R A 15 K

AT ©

ARE LK M E %A
HIE  EERNESER
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BE—Z——#=A=+—HI-EE (LETIIE)

23 Trade and other payables 23 ENEZRHEMESIIKRR

The group The company
rEE PN
2012 =8—=F 2011 —T——F 2012=B-=F 2011 _F——F
HKS$# T HK$# 7T HKS$# 7T HK$HTT
Trade payables ERE SRR 426,820 590,258 - -
Accrued charges and FESH B R HoAl
other payables FEfTIRTR 2,038,663 2,069,757 473,895 532,697
Gross amount due to e P /O AR 7S
customers for service AHITEFE
contract work (note 19) 4= (M15E19) 128,730 481,665 - -
Deferred maintenance EEREMA
income 1,035,005 1,104,573 - -
3,629,218 4,246,253 473,895 532,697

All of the trade and other payables of the group are expected
to be settled or recognised as income within one year or are

repayable on demand.

The ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

AEENENE S REMENRFEEER —FR
XAV SRR R ER L TER BN ©

RBEIR - IREE B BT E R E ZIRKAIRE
DT

The bank loans and overdrafts were repayable within one year or

on demand as follows:

The group
rEE
2012 =2 ——F 2011 —&——%F
HKS$#E T HKS$HTT
Less than 1 month DA —1E B 229,639 236,037
1 month to 3 months —Z=={@H 83,779 185,277
More than 3 months but less than 1 year — #38=1{f 7B A —E - 141,648
More than 1 year HBilm—F 113,402 27,296
426,820 590,258
24 Short-term borrowings 24 EBHIEE

ARN—FAREEREENRITEEREMAT :

The group
KEME
2012 =E—=fF 2011 —&——%
HK$%E T HKS$S 7T
Secured bank loans BEPRITEE - 1,000,000
Unsecured bank loans ERRITEE - 821,100
- 1,821,100

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Short-term borrowings (continued)

The bank loans and overdrafts bear weighted average effective
interest rate at approximately 4.1% (2011: 4.7%) per annum for
the year.

At 31 March 2012, the group’s general banking facilities were
secured by the following:

(a) corporate guarantees executed by the company to its
subsidiary;
(b) personal guarantees executed by two directors of the

company (note 32(b)); and

(©) the group’s pledged bank deposits (note 22).

24

iR e B s HaR M e

BE_ T _F=ZA=+—HLFE CNVETIIE)

mHEE (F)

REBMAORITER RIRITE TR INEFFEF R
WANB (ZT——F : 4.78) ;TEFE -

R=F-=#=A=+-0  AEBERTREN

—RIRTTRAE YR

(a)

(b)

(@]

ARAFRBEME R R EERER

ARRMEERENEAER (FFE32(b))
)3

AREEM S EMRTER (MFFE22) -

Provisions

25 BB

The group &5 E

Employee Defect liability
benefits period
(note (a)) (note(b)) Total
EEEF REH
(F=E(a)) (Pt £ (b)) &5t
HK$E 7T HK$Z 7T HK$A 7T
At 1 April 2010 R-ZT—T&FMA—H 92,028 199,191 291,219
Additional provisions recognised RIMNEBETR (MI7E6(c)
(note 6(c)) 111,425 343,643 455,068
Reversal of unused provisions RENFAE AR (MiFE6()
(note 6(c)) (114,325) (323,269) (437,594)
At 31 March 2011 and RZE——F=A=+—H
1 April 2011 R-T——&mA—H 89,128 219,565 308,693
Additional provisions recognised RINEBETR (HI7E6(0)
(note 6(c)) 87,283 770,864 858,147
Reversal of unused provisions REPAEEEE (M)
(note 6(c)) (100,688) (397,107) (497,795)
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=A=+—H 75,723 593,322 669,045
Notes: B3
(a) The provision for employee benefits represents annual leave accrued (a) EERFBETIEREE FHRERENTIRERS -

and compensation claims made by employees.

(b) The provision for the defect liability period relates to the estimated
cost of work agreed to be carried out for the rectification of smartcard
systems to certain customers. The amount has not been discounted
for the purpose of measuring the provision for defect liability period
because the effect would not be material.

REHBEEDIEEER TEP B RASRNMG
TRAAR - BRNREIAREHENRRATED
R HORBATEHRMBE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26

27

ISR AR BT

BE_ZT—

Employee retirement benefits

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan

vest immediately.

The subsidiary operating in the PRC is required to participate in
a defined contribution retirement scheme, organised by relevant
government authorities for the staff in the PRC. The subsidiary
is required to make contributions to the retirement scheme at
specified rates of the basic salary of its employees in the PRC.

The group’s retirement scheme contributions charged to profit or
loss for the year were HK$596,170 (2011: HK$626,337).

Share options schemes

The company adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Scheme”) on 12 February 2001. The company adopted a
2002 share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) on 8 August
2002, and the Pre-IPO Scheme was simultaneously terminated. In
addition, the company adopted a 2011 share option scheme (the
“2011 Scheme”) on 8 August 2011, and the 2002 Scheme was
simultaneously terminated.

Upon termination of the Pre-IPO Scheme and the 2002 Scheme,
no further options may be offered thereunder. However, in respect
of the outstanding options, the provisions of the Pre-IPO Scheme
and the 2002 Scheme will remain in force. The outstanding
options granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme and the 2002 Scheme
continue to be subject to the provisions of the Pre-IPO Scheme,
the 2002 Scheme and Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules, and
the adoption of the 2011 Scheme will not in any event affect the
terms in respect of such outstanding options.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

26

27

“FZA=+—HLEFE CNETIIE)

B TRIRER

AEEIEBESRFEABRABEH AREEHE
BB AR EFURE MR A R ERAMBR AT ENE
SlEBRERFIEATESTE ([BESTE) - &
MBS E AR EHIERE  WHBIETE

1R o RIFRESETE  BEEREESBERRE
Eﬁ%@ﬁ’]%ﬁé#ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ‘fﬁrgﬂ t% - mMEAA
BAHIF & IR 520,000/ 7T © FiB B T
aTEl e

AR R R E RN B A R E SR REERE B

EHiE B 2 TR NEFGHE o M B A RRRH
HARRAGTEIRENL EUESEARTE LA
e (3R

AEBRAFEE T AR RAERER B ERE
596,170/870 (ZF——%F : 626,337/57L) °

BRES

ARAR BT —F A+ ARM— A LHAIH
fERiERt 8 (T EmaTs 8l - R=ZFZ_F AN
H ARABRA-_ZTZT— fﬁﬁﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁ‘i‘] (=t el
FErE]) MARA L EWATEE © beoh KT —
—FNANB  ARRRH =T ——FERETE
([ZZF——F53]) MERRIE-TT —F543 o

FEMAG SR TR _FFHARLR  T7H

RIFUL F T B2 2 EAIBAE - W RITENER

B LA SR TR S EREEEY -

MAlET S R =BT - Ft S HARITEMN B A

BET LA —ER_FRERAIERLET

RAUAE-—+=8 —T——FFFHEAEEMBERTH
PEFE T RATTRERERN E AR -
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E-T——F=ZA=1+—HILEFEE UABTIIE)

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) &

- 0 e A==
Share option schemes (continued) 27 ERRESHE (&)
Pre-IPO Scheme (@) LtmATEtE
As mentioned above, the Pre-IPO Scheme was terminated on 8 WERE EmAsrElR=—2E_F/\A/\BK
August 2002 and no further options may be offered thereunder. 1E - R TSR BEITREAE - RERRARITE
Details of the outstanding share options of the scheme during the HBER RSB T
year are as follows:
Number of share options
ERREE
Outstanding Price per
at 31 March sharetobe  Market value
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed 2011, 1 April paidon  pershare at
Name or category of at during during during ~ 2011and 31 Period during which ~exercise of ~ date of grant
participant 1 April 2010 the year the year theyear  March 2012 Date granted options exercisable options of options
RZB--F
ZR=t-A»
I3
MA-AHUR
3-8 k- S 3 fBRE  RLBRE
mA-A ZA=1-A AXfIN EBH
BEREN AR HATE  REREE  RERTE  RERAN BR{TE RHiRH BRETES SRER Rttt
Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent/Director 6,109,440 - (6,108,000) (1,440) - 12 February 2001 21 August 2001 to HK$0.095 N/A
11 February 2011
HEt/ €5 ZFT-F CER-ENACE-AE 09T TR
ZAtZR “2—%-ft-H
George Roger Manho/Director 4,000,000 - - (4,000,000) - 12 February 2001 21 August 2001 to HK$0.095 NA
11 February 2011
Bk /8% ZE2-F ZEE-E)\ACT-AE 00%5ET iR
ZAtZR “2—%-ft-H
Cheng Kwok Hung/Director 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) - - 12 February 2001 21 August 2001 to HK$0.095 /A
11 February 2011
gl /8% 23-F ZEE-E\A-f-BE  00%5%T R
“At-A “F——E-f+-H
Liu Hoi Wah/Director 19,112,640 - - (19112,640) - 12 February 2001 21 August 2001 to HK$0.095 /A
11 February 2011
Uz /8% “55-F ZEE-FN\ACt-RE 0095ET R
“ATZR “2——%-ft-H
Lee Peng Fei, Allen/Director 1,760,000 - (1,760,000) - - 12 February 2001 21 August 2001 to HK$0.095 N/A
11 February 2011
3k 22 Z55-F ZEF-EM\B-t-RE  009ET TEE
—At=H I Sl
Employees 35,157,920 - (20,800,000)  (14,357,920) - 12 February 2001 21 August 2001 to HK$0.095 NA
11 February 2011
[E& ZF2-F  ZEZ-ENAZT-RE 0095 0 il
“BtZH Z2——E£Zft-H
70,140,000 - (32,668,000)  (37,472,000) -

In respect of the share options exercised during the year ended

31 March 2011, the weighted average share price at the dates of

exercise is HK$0.12.

T —F=ZA=+t - HEEARTENBRE - K
PTEE BRI R E50.12/8 7T -
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27

(b)

Share options schemes (continued)
2002 Scheme

The company operates the 2002 Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the 2002 Scheme include the company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the group, suppliers of goods or services to the group, customers
of the group, advisers and consultants, etc. The 2002 Scheme
became effective on 8 August 2002.

The company adopted the 2011 Scheme on 8 August 2011,
and the 2002 Scheme was simultaneously terminated. Upon
termination of the 2002 Scheme, no further options may be
offered thereunder. However, in respect of the outstanding
options, the provisions of the 2002 Scheme will remain in force.
The outstanding options granted under the 2002 Scheme continue
to be subject to the provisions of the 2002 Scheme and Chapter
23 of the GEM Listing Rules, and the adoption of the 2011
Scheme will not in any event affect the terms in respect of such
outstanding options.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2002 Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the company shall not exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the company in issue. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the 2002
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the company
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to directors, chief executives or substantial
shareholders of the company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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BE_Z-—_FZA=+—HILFE CNETIIE)

Share option schemes (continued) 27 WBRESHE (&)
2002 Scheme (continued) (b) =ZZ_Ft8 (&)
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within EETEREETNEHELEREN - +—X
21 days from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal AN LB —BTHNRBAERABEZERE B
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period ERENTERRAESETE  NELH—REH
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and ARG TARRHEELEREBR TR RE
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date H R ET-FEEIRE BT -
which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the
share options or the expiry date of the 2002 Scheme, if earlier.
The exercise price of the share option is determinable by the BRENTEESIBESEE F EETFER
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing THHESE : ((VRARRNDEBREREEBKRH
price of the company’s shares on the date of the offer of the share B (A RIROERMRL BRI AER S B 6T
options, (i) the average closing price of the company’s shares for HUTE ¢ (iR EE °
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the share.
As mentioned above, the 2002 Scheme was terminated on 8 N ERK T _F5r8R=_——FN\ANEB
August 2011 and no further options may be offered thereunder. BRI BWET SR BRITHERE  REARKRT
Details of the outstanding share options of the Scheme during the FRERENFBIT :
year are as follows:
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Price per
at 1 April 2010, Period  sharetobe  Market value
31 March 2011 Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding during which paidon per share at
Name or category of and 1 April during during during  at31 March options exercise  date of grant
participant 211 the year the year the year 212 Date granted exercisable  of options of options
R-E-%8F
mA-A»
—2--%
ZA=1-H
HR=%--F R=B-ZF fkBRE  RLEBRE
mA-H ZA=t-A AN EBH
RERENLTDER HAGE  MERRE RERTE RERER BR{TE RHAH BRETES SRER Rttt
Employees 3,500,000 - - - 3500000 9 August 2002 AUt 2003t HKSO.ATS  HKS0.175
8 August 2012
€& ZZRENAAR ZEESENANAE  01T5ER 0.175% 7
“E-ZENANA
An employee 6,400,000 - - - 6,400,000 9 August 2002 9 February 2003 to HK$0.175 HK$0.175
8 August 2012
B8 ZZZCENANE ZEESECARRE 0TSER 017557
“E-—E/\A/\A
9,900,000 - - - 9,900,000
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(o)

Share options schemes (continued)
2011 Scheme

The company operates the 2011 Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the 2011 Scheme include the company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the group, suppliers of goods or services to the group, customers
of the group, advisers and consultants, etc. The 2011 Scheme
became effective on 8 August 2011 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2011 Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the company shall not exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the company in issue. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the 2011
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the company
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to directors, chief executives or substantial
shareholders of the company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the
share options or the expiry date of the 2011 Scheme, if earlier.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Share options schemes (continued)
2011 Scheme (continued)

The exercise price of the share option is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the company’s shares on the date of the offer of the share
options, (i) the average closing price of the company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the share.

Up to 31 March 2012, no share options were granted, exercised
or lapsed during the year.

At 31 March 2012, the number of share options outstanding and issuable
under the Pre-IPO Scheme, the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme were
none, 9,900,000 and none, respectively.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
at shareholders’ meetings.

28
(a)

(i)

iR e B s HaR M e

BE_ T _F=ZA=+—HLFE CNVETIIE)

27 BRESE (&)

(0 =FT——%F58 (&)
WREOTEERBIMESET  EEFGER
THBEE : (VA RRMEBBMEEHE A fRD
8 (DA RBRATER G & B AANAERS BT
WU TE ¢ (DR -
BE-T-—F=A=+-BLFER WEAHE
IRBARAERLL © (TREBA R AR «

R-F——F=A=+— a LHAGE . T4

HER-T-—FHETRTHOROEADNATE

9,900,000/% &2 ZH& -

BT ERTHE AMBRBE RRERAGREAER -

Capital and reserves 28 EBEXK#E
Share capital (@) m’=&
The company (i) RNAR]
2012 =B——F 2011 ZF——F
Number of shares 7] HK$ Number of shares HK$
REE BT Rt BT
Authorised: EERA -
Ordinary shares of FRE(E0.01 7T
HK$0.01 each TRk 2,000,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
Ordinary share, issued BETRAREAE
and fully paid: LiEhg
At 1 April REA—H 935,728,000 9,357,280 903,316,000 9,033,160
Repurchase of shares Bl fE R ()
(note 28(a)(i)) (P E28(a)i) (5,136,000) (51,360) (256,000 (2,560)
Issue of shares upon {TEREAREM B TR
exercise of share options (Bt 5E28(a) i)
(note 28(aiii) - - 32,668,000 326,680
At 31 March R=B=+—H 930,592,000 9,305,920 935,728,000 9,357,280

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the company’s residual assets.

TREFEAARIRERAEIRMKS - A%
RASEEZ LRER-—FRERR - EEBKR
EASERSREED HAR SN
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BE—Z——#=A=+—HI-EE (LETIIE)

28 Capital and reserves (continued) 28 EXKkfEE (F)
(@) Share capital (continued) (a) MBA ()
(i) Repurchase of shares (i) [E1fE AR 15
During the year, the company repurchased its own ordinary shares FR - RNRRIPA G FTERE T 5 E RS
on the Stock Exchange as follows:
2012 =& —=F
Number of Price paid per share
shares Aggregate FRZAER
Month/year £ /8 repurchased prices paid Highest Lowest
i IR 17 B B EANE R B= BRI
HK$#& T HKS$#E T HKS$#E T
August 2011 —ZT—F/)\A 1,444,000 114,426 0.080 0.076
November 2011 —E—F+—A 1,788,000 134,490 0.072 0.062
December 2011 —E——F+—f 892,000 63,570 0.075 0.065
January 2012 —E——H—AH 204,000 13,451 0.065 0.064
February 2012 —E——HF—f 808,000 49,133 0.060 0.060
5,136,000 375,070
2011 =F——F
Number of Price paid per share
shares Aggregate FREZ A ER
Month/year % /R repurchased prices paid Highest Lowest
Bl s FANFEEE] &= RIE
HK$# T HK$# 7T HK$7& 7T
February 2011 —E—%_H 80,000 8,049 0.105 0.098
March 2011 —E——F=A 176,000 18,529 0.106 0.103
256,000 26,578

4,328,000 repurchased shares in 2012 were cancelled in January
2012. The remaining 808,000 repurchased shares in 2012 were
pending to be cancelled up to the reporting date (the repurchased
shares in 2011 were subsequently cancelled in April 2011). The
issued share capital of the company was reduced by the nominal
value of these shares. The premium paid on the repurchase of the
shares of HK$323,710 (2011: HK$24,018) was charged to share
premium account.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

4,328,000 BIERMHER =T ——F— A DT
$H » 808,000/ Bl fE ik 19 = b & B EA LIE 1D A #F
T (CE——FEBERONR-Z——FHAEHK
) c MARARIBEITRAINEEZ SRMHEE
T o RSN RI323,7108 7T (ZE——4F -
24,0187 7T) i BRRR 5 B R HIBR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e B s HaR M e

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=—F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

Capital and reserves (continued) 28 EXKf#E (&)
Share capital (continued) (a) M (&)
During the year ended 31 March 2011, share options were (i) RZTE——F=A=+—HFEARN  BEREEST
exercised to subscribe for 32,668,000 ordinary shares in fif + A3,103 46O>aTEE’\J1H“?EL\E§3Z,668,OOOZISL
the company at a consideration of HK$3,103,460 of which AR EBAR - IRIEMTEE2(n) FTELAIBUR + 326,680/7%
HK$326,680 and HK$2,776,780 credited to share capital and 7T %2,776,7807% 7T 5 Al BEABR A R & 15 B IR ©
share premium account, respectively, in accordance with policy HEABEREFBENGEE M mRMT27(
set out in note 2(n). Further details of these options are set out in
note 27(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of  (iv)  RIREHAIRAIAREZEA R AR1T6E R BEARE
the reporting period
2012 =F—=F 2011 —=——%F
Exercise Price Number Number
Exercise period 1T1EHA 1TEE B £ gE|
9 August 2003 to —TT=%)\ANBEZE HK$0.175
8 August 2012 —Z—=—F)\ANB 0.175%87C 3,500,000 3,500,000
9 February 2003 to —EE=F-ANHEHZE HK$0.175
8 August 2012 —2——FN\AN\HRH 0.175%7T 6,400,000 6,400,000
9,900,000 9,900,000
Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share BERERAEAGEUNS - RERERE-RAQ
in the company. Further details of these options are set out in note B E AR o A AR 5 1B B P AN B S R AR BT A
27(b) to the consolidated financial statements. 27(b) °
Reserves (b) &
The group (i) REHE

The amounts of the group’s reserves and the movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

AEBNFBEREZSI N EREHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BE—Z——#=A=+—HI-EE (LETIIE)

28 EXKf#EE ()

28 Capital and reserves (continued)

(b)  Reserves (continued) (b) f&fE (&)
(ii) The company (ii) PAN/NE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R E e 1] a5t
HK$/E7T HK$E7T HK$E T
Balance at 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZTFHA—B&EH 22,570,030 (24,240,910) (1,670,880)
Repurchase of shares (note 28(a)(ii)) [E1EEA&H (FizE28(a)ii)) (24,018) = (24,018)
Issue of shares upon exercise 1P R AR A T 21 T (D
of share options (note 28(a)iii)) (P E28(a)iii)) 2,776,780 = 2,776,780
Loss for the year FRNEE = (88,651) (88,651)
Balance at 31 March 2011 R-E——F=A=+—H
and 1 April 2011 ;=T ——FMA—HiH% 25,322,792 (24,329,561) 993,231
Repurchase of shares (note 28(a)(ii) [EIFEM D (FTzE28(a)ii)) (323,710) - (323,710)
Loss for the year FNEE = (6,193,754) (6,193,754)
Balance at 31 March 2012 MN-E——4F
ZA=+—H#&#H% 24,999,082 (30,523,315) (5,524,233)
()  Nature and purpose of reserves () FEMNHEEREDN
(i) Share premium (i) N5 S (B

84

(ii)

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
company’s articles of association and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, which provides that the share premium account
may be applied in making distributions or paying dividends to
members, provided that immediately following the date on which
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the company will
be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

Merger reserve

The group’s merger reserve represents the excess of the aggregate
of the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation completed on 18
November 2000 on the nominal value of the share capital of the
company issued in exchange therefor.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE=Z—=—F=A=+—HILFE (LETIIE)

Capital and reserves (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(p).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2012, the company had HK$Nil (2011: HK$993,231)
available for distribution to owners of the company.

Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safequard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for owners and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher owner returns
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the group defines net
debt as total debt (which includes short-term borrowings and
trade and other payables) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less
cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

During the year, the group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2010, was to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio below
50%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to owners, issue new shares,
return capital to owners, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The major financial covenant for the group’s committed banking
facilities is to maintain the consolidated tangible net worth not
less than HK$10,000,000 during the period of facilities granted.
At 31 March 2012, the group had not complied with the relevant
financial covenant. As the group did not utilise any banking
facilities at the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
company consider that this non-compliance with the relevant
financial covenant has no material impact to the group’s financial
position.

28 EXKf#EE ()

()

(iii)

(d)

(e)

EENEER B (&)
SINEEBE 3 fé s

SNESTE 51 (ot B R 2K B L B ID RS ) B A 3R R 1Y
SNETENR Z R o REARIBHNIE2(0) & 5K R
# o

2 EfEE

R-B——#=A=+—0 AAATHEFAA
AREMEEAS ST (ZT ——4F :993,231%
JT) °

BEXEHE
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29

(a)

ISR AR BT

BE-_ZT—

Financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the group’s business. The group is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from its financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

These risks are limited by the group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

Credit risk

The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 45 days (2011: 45 days)
from the date of billing. Normally, the group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of the
reporting period, the group has a certain concentration of credit
risk as 17% (2011: 22%) and 62% (2011: 59%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. Except for the financial
guarantees given by the company as set out in note 31, the group
does not provide any other guarantees which would expose the
group or the company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees at the end of
the reporting period is disclosed in note 31.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in
note 18.

ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Financial instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk

The group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents or have available funding through an adequate
amount of committed annual credit facilities from banks to meet
its commitments over the next year in accordance with its strategic
plan. In the opinion of the directors of the company, most of the
borrowings that mature with one year are able to renew and the
group expects to have adequate sources of funding to finance the
group and manage the liquidity position.

The maturity profile of the group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

cash flows, was as follows:

29

(b)

AR e B SR M T

BE_Z-—_F=ZA=+—HILFE CNETIIE)

ERTA (&)
ELRBERE

AEENBERDRITRANRE LB EEY - X
FARRITRENATERREEE - UBEINT
FERSEMNABEI L - ARBESZAR - B
BORN—FAINMNEEG I EE RN - AEE A
KEEHESRRABRNEESTE - WHEER
BESMNR

RBERR - AREMERNEBEEORTRR
i

MINRIAT

The group rEE
2012 —F——F
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash outflow on demand
EHRITE R—FER
MR E{E RETH REEREER
HK$7E T HKS$E T HKS$#E T
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 K B FE IR X 2,465,483 2,465,483 2,465,483
2011 =2 ——F
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash outflow on demand
B HRIARITE R—FR
MREE e HEEKEE
HK$ETT HK$#7T HK$ 7T
Trade and other payables FEITE 5 R E AT IR 2,660,015 2,660,015 2,660,015
Short-term borrowings EHEE 1,821,100 1,860,265 1,860,265
4,481,115 4,520,280 4,520,280
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MRS RaR TR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BE—Z——#=A=+—HI-EE (LETIIE)

29 Financial instruments (continued) 29 SETH (&)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) EBEE&REBHERRE ()
The maturity profile of the company’s financial liabilities as RBEBRR  AARMESHNERBENRITRER
at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual SMHNTAT
undiscounted cash flows, was as follows:
The company AT
2012 =8—=F 2011 ZF——F
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash outflow on demand amount cash outflow  on demand
BRARTE R—FR BRRTH R—FR

iREE RER
HKSE T HK$/& 7T

REERER IREE Bemd  SEDkEE
HK$8 7T HK$E T HK$7E 7T HK$7& 7T

Accrued charges and JEEHER R
other payables H AR IRR 473,895 473,895 473,895 532,697 532,697 532,697
() Interest rate risk () F=mRpz

The group’s significant interest-bearing assets are bank deposits.
The group’s interest income is dependent on changes in market
interest rates and will not have significant adverse impact on the

group’s financial position.

The group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from its short-term
borrowings. These borrowings bear interest at rates varying with
the then prevailing market conditions.

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates

would have no significant impact on the group’s loss and equity

for the year.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

AEENEEHNSEED/RITER  AEEF
BUIRAB K ST 5 M R EEE) - (B AR E 0 F 15
A EAFIRE -

AEENFZRERKEEHES - ZFERXREE

YT 5 B BT B R EA R -

MEI0EEZHNSEA LB IS HAEEK
AARRFEHGENNERELBRATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

iR e B s HaR M e

BE_ T _F=ZA=+—HLFE CNVETIIE)

Financial instruments (continued) 29 £®IA (&)
Currency risk (d) E®¥@Ek
The group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are HRAEBRIBHEBRS  BERABEHEE
principally denominated in HK$, RMB, MOP and US$. The group AT - ARY - BPIBRETIE - WEEZH
has minimal exposure to currency risk as the foreign exchange rate HME @B K o | TT 5 4R 3K BB PR E3 [OB
of HK$ is close to MOP and HK$ is pegged with US$. The group TTHETHHEBER - iAKEMAZNEER R
currently does not have a currency hedging policy in respect of TR o 7N £ [ 30 FRF 9 65 MK 35 TH 3 A (R (A 350 SN I
currency debt. The group will monitor its currency exposure closely R AEBERBEERHIINENRR  WRAFTER
and will consider hedging significant currency exposure should the LASINKE 35 HR & #0350 Fh O EE [ B ©
need arise.
The following table details the group’s exposure at the end of the REBRBERARBANRNEEERBNEREELZ
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets JIMEREERBBEMEENEERBFMAET
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
Assets Liabilities
EE =N
2012 =F—=F 2011 ZFT——F 2012 =F—=F 2011 —_FT——4F
HK$38 T HK$E 7T HK$7% T HK$AETT

RMB AR 512,241 511,431 - -

MOP RFIHE 34,602 42,258 - =

us$ E v 55,824 58,964 - -

A reasonably possible change of 1% in exchange rates between
RMB to HK$, MOP to HK$ and US$ to HK$ would have no
significant impact on the group’s loss and equity for the year.

Equity price risk

The group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value at end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the group is exposed to equity price risk. The directors manage this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with difference
risk profiles.

At 31 March 2012, if the market price of the listed equity
securities had increased/decreased by 10% with all other variables
held constant, the group’s loss after tax would have been
HK$64,160 (2011: HK$78,775) lower/higher.

(e)

ARKEBTT  BPIRE BB T KR TT BB T 2 E
KE1%AERBEAEENF AR IERERIR
BEAFE -

IR & L B

AEERSERABRREATERENSREEAR
HERRARTFEFE - WAEE R mEHRER
o MEBRERE  EFEEREFHERMAENTF
RERHERERS -

R-B-——F=A=+—R WEWSERLA
TH10% @ MEMAZRFZRETE - RNREBHOLR
Big QBRI 1B I064,1608 7T (ZF——
F:7877587)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

SRE SRR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29

()

(9

Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments

()

29

BEZZT——F=A=1+—HILFE (AFETIIE)

EETA (&)
SRMIANES

2012 —E——%F

2] e ——"3

HKS$#E T HK$7 7T

The group A&
Financial assets EHMEE
Loan and receivables B FERIR R

(including cash and bank balances) (BFEIRE RIRITAER) 8,294,724 12,123,796
Fair value through profit or loss FHiRB=IRIEATE

(held for trading) (FEER) 768,380 943,410
Financial liabilities = =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEK AN SR B E 2,465,483 4,881,115
The company <A 7]
Financial assets ERMEE
Loan and receivables B EW IR

(including cash and bank balances) (BB MIRTTER) 6,183,415 6,718,684
Financial liabilities s@as
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B AN ESHEE 473,895 532,697

Fair values

(9)

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2012 and 2011.

The carrying value of financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss are measured at level 1 defined in HKFRS 7, using quoted

prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial

instruments.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

AV

FIECRIANAKRSEEER —"Z——FK-F

——&#=B=+—AKA

s

B 79 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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BE_ T _F=ZA=+—HLFE CNVETIIE)

30 Commitments 30 &R
At 31 March 2012, the total future minimum lease payments R=ZZT—=F=A=+—0 A5EREE@EYE
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: WA B L L HEMER BRI MHRERER
IR :
The group
rEH
2012 —B——# 2011 =T —4%
HKS$#E T HK$ATT
Within 1 year —FR 640,256 1,580,710
After 1 year but within 5 years —FBAFN 24,800 477,626
665,056 2,058,336
The group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and AEEES TREHENMERRETRES - H
items of office equipment held under operating leases. The leases HE—MBE—F2=F(ZF——F: —F21%F)
typically run for a period of 1 year to 3 years (2011: 1 year to I AR B R A T ERE - R FHAMRE
5 years) with an option to renew the lease when all terms are FARAEE °
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
The group and the company did not have any other significant REBRARRANR_ZE—_F=A=+—HIUEEE
capital and financial commitments as at 31 March 2012 (2011: AIERHERNRIABEAE (ZF——F : &) -
Nil).
Contingent liabilities 31 HAREE

31

At 31 March 2012, the company has issued corporate guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to a wholly owned
subsidiary (2011: two wholly owned subsidiaries). The directors of
the company do not consider it probable that a claim will be made
against the company under any of the guarantees. The maximum
liability of the company at the end of the reporting period under
the corporate guarantees issued is the banking facilities of
approximately HK$Nil (2011: HK$1 million) drawn down by the
subsidiary at that date.

RZZ—=—F=A=+—8 A2 —B2EHK
BRAA (Z2——F : MAZEMBRAR) ML
MERUDEER - ARAESVHTRAEAAEA
AEEHTABRERNRE - MARRRREH
REMBARSBIRENCERRTESABEAS
BT (ZF——4 : 1,000,000/ L) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SRE SRR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32

(a)

(b)

33

(a)

(b)

Material related party transactions
Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the group,
represents amounts paid to the company’s directors as disclosed in
note 8.

Provision of personal guarantees

Two (2011: two) directors of the company have provided personal
guarantees to the extent of approximately HK$4 million (2011:
HK$9 million) to the group in relation to general banking facilities
granted to the group (note 24(b)).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The management had made the following estimates and
assumptions in the process of applying the group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 2, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities as discussed below.

Revenue and profit recognition

The group estimates the percentage of completion of the service
contracts by reference to the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date to the estimated total costs
for the contracts. When the final cost incurred by the group
is different from the amounts that were initially budgeted,
such differences will impact the revenue and the profit or loss
recognised in the period in which such determination is made.
Budgeted costs of each project will be reviewed periodically and
revised accordingly where significant variances are noted during

the revision.
Fixed assets and depreciation

The group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for the group’s fixed assets. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
fixed assets of a similar nature and function.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

32

(a)

(b)

33

(a)

(b)

BEZZT——F=A=1+—HILFE (AFETIIE)

EXBEALRS
FAREEAEME

ARAHREBEASHEBRINARTEZEH
PAKT L8R ER o

REMEAER

AAFHME (ZE——F : MR) EFHAEE
& TRITAME (FisE24(b)) =4 A2494,000,000
Bt (ZZT——% : 9,000,000/ 7T) HIMEAERF -

CEROLEE S EEE Y

ERAAEENSHBR (FARNE2)  E2E
SELTOIMEE RAE - RATTRREREERAE
IREEE L KR E B -

W 25 % g A HE AR

AEB2EEfhEANBRETRAEENA DA
HRES R ABEN L AIEFHRES N TXE
D o HEARBEMELNREKARTRAAED
HEANFE - BEREZEAFEELRERENEER
WAREE - %18 B mIAE AR E 22 5 R A
BT HREREREE - RIS EHELT -

BEEERITE

AEBREAEEEEEEN MG AR RARA
WEER  met@EztEREBERmEERET
ARIANEEEENERAERHmE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Impairment on trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment on trade and other receivables of the
group is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional impairment adjustments may be required.

Write-down of inventories

A write-down of inventories is made based on the ageing and
estimated net realisable value of inventories. The assessment of the
write-down amount involves judgement and estimates. Where the
actual outcome in future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
the write-down amount charge/reverse in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Deferred tax

Estimating the amount for deferred tax assets arising from tax
losses requires a process that involves forecasting future years’
taxable income and assessing the group’s ability to utilise tax
benefits through future earnings. Where the actual future profits
generated are more or less than expected, a recognition or reversal
of the deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
period in which such a recognition or reversal takes place. While
the current operations indicate that the unused tax losses cannot
be utilised in the future, any changes in assumptions, estimates
and tax regulations can affect the recoverability of this deferred
tax asset.

33
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FERE

FEFBIIRERE kG A2 FE - MTEF
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SRE SRR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

34

Possible impact of new and revised
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2012 and which have not been adopted in the consolidated
financial statements.

Of these developments, the following relate to matters that
may be relevant to the group’s operations and the consolidated
financial statements:

34

BEZZT——F=A=1+—HILFE (AFETIIE)

BE-_Z—_—_F=A=+—HLHF
EEEMERERNIEF - HEA
REREBNEERE

HEHFHBHRRTIEZH  BESFMASEHE
MEZIRER  FEARRE EREBE_T—_F
ZR=t—HIEFEMRER  BRNEE %
R ©

FEELHEXF  UTRAEEARENZERKEAS
MBHRERE

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

ETHBEHHZ

HERN ST IR AN

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: BRI SREERETRAER] 1 July 2011
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets [2@TARE - B ELHEE —F——FtA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial BRGHER B 1RMIER] [HHHREH 1 July 2012
statements — Presentation of items of other 23] - B2 Ekz=E A 25 —F-—f£tA-H

comprehensive income
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax:

BB GRS 1 258 MIER] [AT7F8

1 January 2012

Recovery of underlying assets — EREHIE - WEIEREE —T-—%—-A-H
Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting Financial Assets BB R FE325RM0ER] 1 January 2014
and Financial Liabilities — Y HEEREHARE —T-mE-HA—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments BN EREERNFEN (2@ T A/ 1 January 2015
—Z-RF—-A—H

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements EBRISRELERIE 105 (44 51K % ] 1 January 2013
—Z2—=%—-H—H

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements BTSN ENSR A ELH 1 January 2013
—%=-%—A-H

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities BSMISREZRIE 125 1 January 2013
[HERE MB35 —2-=5f-F

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement BB MIEIRERRIFE135 [ A FEAE] 1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) BB EEERE275 1 January 2013
[ BB #HE (ZF——)] —T—=F—-H—H

HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures EHGERE285 [ R A TR 1 January 2013
B EPRAKE] —E—=%—H—H

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits UGBS SRR 19%: [ESEF/ 1 January 2013
—T—=F—A—H

The directors have confirmed that the group is in the process of
making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that their
adoption is unlikely to have a significant impact on the group’s
results of operations and financial position.

ITE (Holdings) Limited

EEHRAKE L EEMILFER - E R
BEVIRERABENTE - 250 Ew R RALS
Ba] - FEARRES T @Y ARENZEREAR
MEAIERERTE -



Five Year Summary

h B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZSTHI(E)
2011/12 2010/11 2009/10 2008/09 2007/08
B2 —T-TF—F _ZTNE-TF _ETN\ETNF —TZTtEIN\F
HKSB T HK$BTT HK$B T HK$B T HK$ T

Results ¥
Turnover R 25,903,461 23,417,680 54,935,393 77,488,677 77,492,591
(Loss)/profit from operations i (B51R)/ A (1,749,844) (3,333,480) 643,727 2,299,518 2,404,538
Finance costs RARA (83,019) (86,547) (397,161) (799,671) (1,200,913)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEHT (518),/ %7 (1,832,863) (3,420,027) 246,566 1,499,847 1,203,625
Income tax 5% (8,250) (12,047) (42,600) (185,000) (118,015)
(Loss)/profit for the year ARAEEAER

attributable to owners JEIHER

of the company (B8),/ &F (1,841,113) (3,432,074) 203,966 1,314,847 1,085,610
Assets and liabilities EERER
Fixed assets BT BE 42,708 85,440 175,823 372,042 659,642
Available-for-sale financial assets A/t ELREE - - - = 1,653,600
Net current assets MEAEHE 9,017,945 11,297,644 11,602,266 11,376,755 8,328,653
Net assets BEFE 9,060,653 11,383,084 11,778,089 11,748,797 10,641,895
(Loss)/earnings per share Bk (FE) /27
Basic (HK cents) A (L) (0.20) (0.38) 0.02 0.15 0.12
Diluted (HK cents) B (L) (0.20) (0.38) 0.02 0.15 0.12
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